
 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Carlsbad City Council Regular Meeting  
Janell Whitlock Municipal Complex 

 114 S. Halagueno Street 
Carlsbad, New Mexico 

 
July 11, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 

    
Invocation – Pledge of Allegiance 
 

1. Approval of Agenda 
 

2. Routine and Regular Business 
 
 
 

 
A. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on June 27, 2023 
B. City Personnel Report 
C. Contracts and Agreements 

1) Consider Approval of Memorandum of Understanding between the City of 
Carlsbad, Eddy County and the City of Artesia for the Use of Opioid Settlement 
Funds 
2) Consider Approval of Memorandum of Agreement for the City of Carlsbad to 
enter into a Combined Application in order to relinquish Community DWI 
Enforcement Funds to the New Mexico State Police 
3) Consider Approval of Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and NM 
Department of Finance for an E911 Grant Agreement for the 911 Telephone 
Emergency System at the Carlsbad Police Department 
4) Consider Approval of Renewal Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and 
Garden Mart Inc. for Grounds Keeping and Maintenance Services of City Wide 
Landscapes, Medians, Gateways and Properties 

D. Monthly Reports 
1) Human Resources Department June 2023 
 

3. Consider Approval of submission of a Grant Application to the American Library 
Association for an Americans and the Holocaust Traveling Exhibition 
  

4. Consider Approval of acceptance of T-Mobile Hometown Grant for the Carlsbad Public 
Library’s Digital Archive and Meeting Space 
 

5. Consider Approval of acceptance of Grant Agreement from the New Mexico Department 
of Finance and Administration for the Carlsbad Police Department to Purchase and 
Equip Police Vehicles  

All matters under this heading are considered routine by the City Council and will be acted upon in one motion.  
 There will be no separate discussion of these items.  If discussion is desired on a particular item, upon request,  

that item may be removed from the Routine and Regular Business and be considered separately. 



Carlsbad City Council 07/11/2023 
114 S. Halagueno St. 6:00 p.m. 

 

 
 

 
 

6. Consider Approval of Temporary Business License to conduct door to door sales of 
educational books by Southwestern Advantage dba Rene’s Books 
 

7. Consider Approval of an Appeal of the decision by the Planning and Zoning Commission 
to deny a Variance request to reduce the required side property setback at 1209 W 
Thomas Appellant: Lucas McDonald 
 

8. Consider Approval of Resolution 2023-32, a Resolution increasing the contribution from 
the City of Carlsbad (City), to the New Mexico Public Employees Retirement Association 
(PERA) for Carlsbad Police Officers Association (CPOA) union members participating in 
Municipal General Plan 3 
 

9. Consider Approval of Resolution 2023-33, a Resolution increasing the contribution from 
the City of Carlsbad (City), to the New Mexico Public Employees Retirement Association 
(PERA) for Municipal Police Plan 5 
 

10. Consider Approval of Resolution 2023-34, a Resolution requiring the removal of the 
ruins, rubbish, wreckage, debris or weeds at 2506 Primrose Owner: Norwest Bank NM, 
Albert Lopez K of S 

 
11. Council Committee Reports 

 
12. Adjourn 

 
 
 

 
 

  

 FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

 
Agendas and City Council minutes are available on the City web site: cityofcarlsbadnm.com  

 or may be viewed in the Office of the City Clerk during normal and regular business hours. 
 
 

     CARLSBAD CITY COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULE 
• Regular Meeting - Tuesday, July 25, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 

• Regular Meeting – Tuesday, August 8, 2023 at 6:00 p.m 
 
 

If you require hearing interpreter, language interpreters or auxiliary aids in order to attend 
and participate in the above meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s office at 

(575) 887-1191 at least 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting time. 



 

 1 

LINKED MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO, HELD IN THE JANELL WHITLOCK 

MUNICIPAL COMPLEX BUILDING ON JUNE 27, 2023 AT 6:00 P.M. 
 
 
Present:  Dale Janway    Mayor  
   Edward T. Rodriguez  Councilor 
   Jason O. Chavez   Councilor 
   Mark C. Walterscheid  Councilor 
   Jeff Forrest    Councilor 
   Karla Niemeier   Councilor 
   Judith E. Waters   Councilor  
 
Absent:  Lisa A. Anaya-Flores  Councilor 
   Wesley A. Carter   Councilor    
 
Also Present:  John Lowe    City Administrator 
   K.C. Cass    Deputy City Administrator 
   Ted Cordova    Deputy City Administrator 
   Wendy Austin   Deputy City Administrator 
   Denise Madrid-Boyea  City Attorney  
   Nadine Mireles   City Clerk 
   Angie Barrios-Testa   Director of Municipal Services 
   Mike Abell    Director of Utilities 
   Wayne Hatfield   IT Director 
   Brent Griffith    IT Technician 
   Melissa Salcido   Finance Director 
   Ken Ahrens    Fire Chief 
   Jeff Patterson    Planning Director 
   Shane Skinner   Police Chief 
   Patrick Cass    Public Works Director 
   Charlie Garcia   Police Officer 
   Missi Currier    Cambiar Consulting 
   Jim Waters    Citizen 
 
 
Time Stamps and headings below correspond to recording of meeting and the recording 
is hereby made a part of the official record. 
 
0:00:00  Call Meeting to Order   
 
0:00:20 Invocation – Pledge of Allegiance  
 
0:00:48 1.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA  



 

 2 

 
0:00:49 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Rodriguez and seconded by Councilor Chavez to 
approve the Agenda. 
 
0:00:53 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Walterscheid, 
Chavez; No - None; Absent - Carter, Anaya-Flores; the motion carried. 
 
0:01:09 2.  CITY OF CARLSBAD FINANCIALS – MAY 2023  
Mrs. Salcido reviewed the revenues and expenditures as of May 2023 for the General 
Fund and selected Enterprise and Special Funds contained within the City Budget. 
 
0:02:39 3.  ROUTINE AND REGULAR BUSINESS  
A.  Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on June 13, 2023 
B.  City Personnel Report 
C.  Purchasing 

1) Consider Approval to Advertise Invitation to Bid for Double Eagle Waterline 
Replacement Project 
2) Consider Approval to Award RFP 2023-06 to Aquatic Consultants for 
Professional Aquatic Management Services 

D.  Contracts and Agreements 
1) Consider Approval of Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and Eddy 
County for the Provision of General Services for Eddy County Residents for 
Fiscal Year 2023-2024 
2) Consider Approval of Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and Carlsbad 
Municipal Schools for General Services for Fiscal Year 2023-24 

E.  Monthly Reports 
1) Community Development Department May 2023 
2) Municipal Court Department May 2023 
3) Municipal Services Department May 2023 
4) Utilities Department May 2023 

 
0:02:58 Mayor Janway asked Mr. Cass to briefly explain Agenda item C1, 
Consider Approval to Advertise Invitation to Bid for Double Eagle Waterline 
Replacement Project.   
Mr. Cass said this project is a portion of the north well collector line, that includes all 
the wells on the Caprock.  He said this will encompass the $2 million of Economic 
Development Administration funds that the City received and has now been given the 
opportunity to use.  Mr. Cass said there is an old 22-inch steel line that exists there now 
that was constructed in the mid-1940s.  He said this will be replaced with a 24-inch C900 
PVC line.  
 



 

 3 

Councilor Walterscheid asked if this area is rocky.  Mr. Cass said it is rocky and it is on 
the Caprock.  He said it is the north well of the Double Eagle Water System. 
 
0:04:44 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Forrest and seconded by Councilor Rodriguez to 
approve Routine and Regular Business. 
 
0:04:51 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Walterscheid, 
Chavez; No - None; Absent - Carter, Anaya-Flores; the motion carried.  
 
0:05:07 4.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PROPOSAL FROM CAMBIAR 
CONSULTING, LLC (MISSI CURRIER) TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL 
LOBBYING SERVICES TO SUPPORT THE CITY’S AGENDA WITH A FOCUS ON 
THE NEW MEXICO LEGISLATURE  
Mr. Lowe said this is an agreement with Cambiar Consulting, LLC, to provide lobbying 
services on behalf of the City of Carlsbad.  He said Missi Currier is the cofounder of 
Cambiar Consulting and has been a registered lobbyist for the City of Carlsbad for the 
last several years.  
 
Missi Currier said as of right now, the interim committees are starting to meet again 
throughout the state; including Tax and Rev, Legislative Finance Committee, 
Transportation and many others.  She said it would be an honor to represent the City of 
Carlsbad throughout the interim, as well as going into the legislative session, which will 
start in January 2024.  Ms. Currier said she knows there is a lot of work to consider 
between destination sourcing and road funding.  She said she looks forward to 
continuing conversations to support the City of Carlsbad. 
 
Councilor Rodriguez said Ms. Currier is very knowledgeable and working with her has 
been beneficial.  He said she is good at getting doors open and getting an audience.  He 
said he would like to work with her in the future. 
  
0:07:29 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Rodriguez and seconded by Councilor Niemeier to 
approve of proposal from Cambiar Consulting, LLC (Missi Currier) to provide 
Professional Lobbying Services to support the City’s agenda with a focus on the New 
Mexico Legislature. 
 
0:07:36 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Walterscheid, 
Chavez; No - None; Absent - Carter, Anaya-Flores; the motion carried.  
 



 

 4 

0:07:53 5.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF REQUEST FROM DONNA DAVIS 
FOR OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS WATER SERVICE FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
217-2 GRASSBURR LANE  
Mr. Abell said at the regular scheduled meeting of the Board of Water and Sewer 
Commissioners on May 18, 2023, a request for water service outside of the serving 
district was presented and recommended for approval.  
 
Councilor Walterscheid asked if it will cost the City to grant this service and if we have 
the amount of water necessary to provide service.  Mr. Abell said the City of Carlsbad 
has a mechanism in place for residents that live outside of the serving district.  He said 
this consists of them applying to the City of Carlsbad for water.  Mr. Abell said the 
service itself will be set on Grassburr Lane, and the property is off of Mission Ave.   
 
Mr. Walterscheid asked if the lines are of appropriate size to give them water without 
affecting everyone else in the area.  Mr. Abell answered yes. 
 
 Councilor Chavez asked if this is two times the rate.  Mr. Abell said yes, he believes 
that it is part of the contract.  
 
Councilor Walterscheid asked if it will stay that way until the City of Carlsbad annexes 
that portion.  Mr. Abell answered yes, normally in that situation, the property would 
have to be annexed into the City at their request, and then it would be determined at 
that point. 
 
Councilor Rodriguez asked what would happen if the property sells.  Mr. Abell said if 
the property sells, the new property owner would have to come before the Board of 
Water and Sewer Commissioners once again, and ask for water service to be continued 
or granted to them at that time.  
 
0:10:56 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Rodriguez and seconded by Councilor Forrest to 
approve request from Donna Davis for Outside City Limits Water Service for property 
located at 217-2 Grassburr Lane. 
 
0:11:01 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Walterscheid, 
Chavez; No - None; Absent - Carter, Anaya-Flores; the motion carried. 
 
0:11:19 6.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF REQUEST FROM DONNA DAVIS 
FOR OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS WATER SERVICE FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
217-3 GRASSBURR LANE 
Mr. Abell said this is the second service that Ms. Davis requested at the May 18, 2023 
Water and Sewer board meeting.  He said it was presented and recommended for 
approval. 



 

 5 

 
Councilor Walterscheid asked if Ms. Davis is looking forward to developing more lots.  
Mr. Abell said she went before the County and subdivided the lots and then came to 
the City, wanting water service for those lots, for construction for her new homes.  
 
0:12:23 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Rodriguez and seconded by Councilor Waters to 
approve request from Donna Davis for Outside City Limits Water Service for property 
located at 217-3 Grassburr Lane. 
 
0:12:28 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Walterscheid, 
Chavez; No - None; Absent - Carter, Anaya-Flores; the motion carried. 
 
0:12:42 7.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ACCEPTANCE OF FEDERAL 
AVIATION ADMINISTRATION (FAA) GRANT FOR THE PRELIMINARY 
ENGINEERING REPORT FOR THE RESURFACING AND RENUMBERING OF 
RUNWAY 3-21 AT THE CAVERN CITY AIR TERMINAL  
Mr. Lowe said this is a request to accept a FAA grant for the Cavern City Air Terminal 
for the Preliminary Engineering Report on Runway 3-21.  He said grant is in the amount 
of $124,000, with a state match of $7,491 and a city match of $832.  Mr. Lowe said this 
project has been budgeted in the Fiscal Year 2024 budget.  
 
0:13:24 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Walterscheid and seconded by Councilor 
Rodriguez to approve acceptance of Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) grant for 
the Preliminary Engineering Report for the resurfacing and renumbering of Runway 3-
21 at the Cavern City Air Terminal. 
 
0:13:30 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Walterscheid, 
Chavez; No - None; Absent - Carter, Anaya-Flores; the motion carried.  
 
0:13:44 8.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF TEMPORARY USE APPLICATION 
TO ALLOW MOBILE SALES (VENDING) OF SNOW CONES ON CITY PROPERTY 
AT THE CARLSBAD BEACH PARK, BY THE SPOT OWNER: SHANE RODRIGUEZ 
Mr. Patterson said this is a request for permission to vend on City owned property at 
the Carlsbad Beach Park by the Spot, owner Shane Rodriguez.  He said the applicant’s 
material indicated snow cones, and he was informed by the applicant that they will sell 
more than just snow cones, but no alcohol.  Mr. Patterson said they asked to vend from 
11:00 am to 8:00 pm, Monday through Sunday.  He said the approval of this request 
with the following conditions is recommended, the applicant shall not disturb the peace 
with a loud speaker, megaphone, bell, music, or other disruptive noise; the applicant 
shall vend toward the sidewalk side of the beach parking lot and shall appropriately 



 

 6 

handle all waste associated with the business.  He said the approval of this request 
grants permission to the applicant to vend snow cones and other related food and 
drinks (non-alcoholic) on City owned property at the Carlsbad Beach Park from 
Wednesday, June 28, 2023 until Sunday, December 31, 2023.  He said they would have 
to provide a surety bond to the City.  
 
Councilor Walterscheid asked how many snow cone trucks do we have. Mr. Patterson 
said he believes we have approved three snow cone trucks.  
 
Councilor Chavez asked how many vendors do we have at the Carlsbad Beach Park.  
Mr. Patterson said if this gets approval, there would be five.   
 
Councilor Chavez asked if there are enough trash cans.  Mr. Patterson said he has not 
received any complaints that there is an accumulation of trash or not enough 
receptacles.  He said it is something he can look into and make sure of.  Councilor 

Chavez said we should consider charging them for trash, since we charge all of other 
businesses for trash.  
 
0:16:34 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Niemeier and seconded by Councilor Rodriguez to 
approve of Temporary Use Application to allow mobile sales (vending) of snow cones 
on City property at the Carlsbad Beach Park, by The Spot Owner: Shane Rodriguez. 
 
0:16:45 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Walterscheid, 
Chavez; No - None; Absent - Carter, Anaya-Flores; the motion carried.  
 
0:16:57 9.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ANNUAL CITY LIQUOR LICENSE 
RENEWALS  
Mrs. Mireles said the City Clerk's office annually requests the City Council's approval 
of all City Liquor License renewals.  She said the renewals are being renewed yearly 
upon the payment of a $250 fee and proof of a valid state issued Liquor License.  She 
said the City currently has 49 Liquor Licenses.  
 
Councilor Walterscheid said $250 is a small fee.   
 
Councilor Forrest said it used to be a lot more.  Mrs. Mireles said $250 is the fee only 
for the City License.  She said they have to have a valid State Liquor License in order to 
receive a City Liquor License.   
 
Councilor Walterscheid asked if one has ever been taken away.  Mrs. Mireles said no, 
the New Mexico Regulation and Licensing Department has jurisdiction over that.  
 
 



 

 7 

0:18:21 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Niemeier and seconded by Councilor Forrest to 
approve of Annual City Liquor License Renewals. 
 
0:18:30 VOTE 
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Walterscheid, 
Chavez; No - None; Absent - Carter, Anaya-Flores; the motion carried. 
 
0:18:44 10.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ANNUAL CITY CANNABIS 
LICENSE NEW AND RENEWALS 
Mrs. Mireles said in 2021, the City of Carlsbad adopted Ordinance 2021-20, which 
requires any applicant for a recreational cannabis establishment to secure a City 
Cannabis License.  She said each City Cannabis License carries a fee of $250 annually 
and should be renewed by July 1 of each year.  She said the City of Carlsbad currently 
has 25 Cannabis Licenses.  
 
Councilor Forrest asked if there is anything we can do to limit the number of licenses 
we have.  Mrs. Mireles said no, it is regulated by the state.   
 
Mayor Janway asked Mrs. Boyea-Madrid if it is in the regulations that we cannot 
tamper a license being issued.  Ms. Madrid-Boyea said yes that is correct, it is all 
regulated by state statute and our role as a municipality is to monitor time, place, and 
manner.  She said if there is an infraction or violation of the state statute, that would 
need to be referred to the state for their enforcement.  She said there is no limit on the 
number of cannabis businesses we have, as long as they comply with the state's 
requirements. 
 
Councilor Forrest asked if the City of Artesia tried to block cannabis licenses.  Mrs. 

Madrid-Boyea said she does not know what Artesia has done, but she understands the 
County may have taken some measures to try to impose their own ordinances.   
 
0:21:06 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Rodriguez and seconded by Councilor Forrest to 
approve of Annual City Cannabis License New and Renewals. 
 
0:21:12 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Walterscheid, 
Chavez; No - None; Absent - Carter, Anaya-Flores; the motion carried.  
 
0:21:25 11.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2023-30, A 
RESOLUTION TO DEEM CERTAIN UTILITY ACCOUNTS UNCOLLECTABLE 
Mrs. Austin said this proposed Resolution is to write off uncollectible utility accounts. 
She said state statute 3-37-7 states that uncollectable accounts which have not been 
collected for a period of more than four years, should be written off the balance sheet. 



 

 8 

Mrs. Austin said in addition, the City's auditors require that uncollectible accounts be 
written off, so that the City’s balance sheet fairly represents the amounts that can be 
reasonably collected.  Mrs. Austin said Resolution 2023-30 proposes a write off of 312 
accounts for service years 2017 through 2018.  She said the amount of the write off is 
approximately $56,000 with an average account balance of $156.  She said the amount of 
the write off is less than 1% of the utility revenue collected during this time frame, and 
this represents less than 15% which is within our limits acceptable on an audit finding. 
Mrs. Austin said the City does not waive its right to collect these amounts in the future.   
 
Councilor Rodriguez asked if there is a lien placed on these when we say we reserve 
the right.  Mrs. Austin answered yes.  She said even though we write off the account 
from the balance sheet, we do keep a record of the utility owner, and if they do come 
forward in the future to open an account, we look at our records and let them know 
they have an unpaid balance.  
 
Councilor Walterscheid asked if the amount ever goes away.  Mrs. Austin said no it 
does not go away, it is just written off the balance sheet.  
 
Councilor Chavez asked if we were to put a lien on somebody, can they sue us for that.  
Mrs. Austin said no, there is state statute that covers the lien process.  
 
0:24:51 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Forrest and seconded by Councilor Rodriguez to 
approve of Resolution 2023-30, a Resolution to deem certain Utility Accounts 
Uncollectable. 
 
0:24:58 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Walterscheid, 
Chavez; No - None; Absent - Carter, Anaya-Flores; the motion carried. 
 
0:25:10 12.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2023-31, A 
RESOLUTION REQUIRING THE REMOVAL OF THE WEEDS, DEBRIS AND 
SECURING THE ABANDONED STRUCTURE AT 112 S ASH/112-B S ASH 
OWNER: JAMES AND LETHA FUDGE C/O JEREMY AND TRACY BOLDUC  
Mrs. Madrid-Boyea said the property is located in a residential neighborhood.  She said 
there appears to be a residential structure and a garage on the property.  She said there 
are weeds on the property and in the alley.  Mrs. Madrid-Boyea said the Eddy County 
Assessor's office names James R. and Letha G. Fudge c/o Jeremy and Tracy Bolduc as 
owning or having an interest in the property.  She said the property has a structure at 
112 S. Ash that appears to be occupied, and the other structures, and garage, need to be 
secured.  Mrs. Madrid-Boyea said Code Enforcement has been to the property, a Notice 
of Violation was sent on October 15, 2020, March 31, 2021, and April 13, 2021.  She said 
a complaint was received on October 26, 2022.  She said the property has been inspected 
by City Code Enforcement and the Fire Chief, and they found that the property remains 



 

 9 

out of compliance with applicable codes.  She said the damaged and unsecured 
structure, weeds, and debris remain on the property.  Mrs. Madrid-Boyea said the Fire 
Chief found that the property presents an extreme fire hazard for responding fire 
fighters and emergency personnel.  She said she has prepared a Resolution for review, 
which if adopted, would require the owner to secure the ruined structure, and remove 
the debris and weeds from the property within 30 days of service of the Resolution. 
Mrs. Madrid-Boyea said she has spoken to Tracy Bolduc and she explained that her 
and her husband live out of town, and they have had some situations where they are 
unable to clean the property themselves, but they are going to pay someone to clean the 
property.  Mrs. Madrid-Boyea said Mrs. Bolduc promised to get started on it 
immediately. 
  
Councilor Walterscheid said it looks as if the owners are waiting for the City to come 
and pick up their trash.  Mrs. Madrid-Boyea said it appears to her the same way, and 
the Planning Department has checked, but no request was put in for the grappler to 
pick it up.  She said however, we went ahead and put in the request for them. 
 
Councilor Rodriguez said he appreciates them trying to clean it up, but he would like 
for the Resolution to be adopted.  He said if they have it cleaned by the end of the 30-
day time period, then we can step away from it, but if not, we need to take the 
necessary action at the appropriate time.  
 
0:30:45 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Rodriguez and seconded by Councilor Niemeier to 
approve of Resolution 2023-31, a Resolution requiring the removal of the weeds, debris 
and securing the abandoned structure at 112 S Ash/112-B S Ash Owner: James and 
Letha Fudge c/o Jeremy and Tracy Bolduc. 
 
0:30:49 VOTE 
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Walterscheid, 
Chavez; No - None; Absent - Carter, Anaya-Flores; the motion carried. 
 
0:31:04 13.  COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS  
No reports. 
 
0:31:09 Mayor Janway asked if anyone in the audience would like to address 
the Council. No one appeared. 
 
0:31:14 14.  ADJOURN 
 
0:31:19 MOTION 
The motion was made by Councilor Waters and seconded by Councilor Forrest to 
adjourn. 
 



 

 10 

0:31:28 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Walterscheid, 
Chavez; No - None; Absent - Carter, Anaya-Flores; the motion carried. 
 
0:31:30 Adjourn  
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:31 p.m. 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Dale Janway, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Nadine Mireles, City Clerk 



CITY OF CARLSBAD 
PERSONNEL REPORT 

July 11, 2023 

APPOINTMENTS: 

NAME DATE DEPARTMENT CLASSIFICATION 

Jacob Luebke 07/12/23 Golf Pro Shop Attendant 

Ashley Medina 07/12/23 Solid Waste ARC Driver 

    

    

    

TERMINATIONS: 

NAME DATE DEPARTMENT CLASSIFICATION REASON 

Garret Aldaz 06/28/23 Fire Firefighter/EMT-I Resigned 

Roby Arnold 06/30/23 Projects Electrical Inspector Retired 

Marisol Cordova 06/30/23 Transit Transit Driver Medical Termination 

Keith Lujan 06/30/23 Garage Shop Foreman Resigned 

Adriana Maturino 06/29/23 Solid Waste ARC Driver Discharged 

Justin Porter 06/15/23 Golf Pro Shop Attendant Resigned 

Steve Rodriguez 06/30/23 Garage Maintenance Superintendent Resigned 

Alexia Torres 06/29/23 Municipal Court BPA Intern Job Ended 

     

     

     

INTERNAL TRANSFERS AND PROMOTIONS: 

NAME DATE DEPARTMENT CLASSIFICATION 

Joseph Florez 06/26/23 Construction Construction Maintenance 2 

    

    
 







Olga Ramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe                                                               07/06/2023















Olga Ramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe                                                   07/06/2023







CITY OF CARLSBAD 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 

Council MeetinQ Date:0?/11/2023 
DEPARTMENT: 
Carlsbad Police Department I 

By: c ~ ~· - ,A. ·~-. 'DATE: 
Shane Skinner- Chief of Police 07/05/2022 

SUBJECT: FY 2024 E911 Grant Agreement 

BACKGROUND, ANALYSIS AND IMPACT: (Safety and Welfare/Financial/Personnel/Infrastructure/etc.) 

!This Grant Agreement is with the NM Department of Finance and Administration , Local 
Government Division for the Enhanced 911 Act. The 911 telephone emergency system 
is necessary to expand the benefits of the basic 911 emergency telephone number to 
achieve a faster response time which minimizes the loss of life and property. The State 
Board of Finance awarded the City of Carlsbad $181 ,951 for the FY2023-FY2024. 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: E-911 FY24 Grant is recommended for approval. 

BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION: 

0 P&Z 
0 Museum Board 

0 Library Board 

I Reviewed by: 
C1ty Admm1strator: 

0 Lodgers Tax Board 

0 San Jose Board 

0 N. Mesa Board 

ATTACHMENT(S) : E-911 Grant Agreement 

0 Cemetery Board 

0 Water Board 

0 Committee 

Date: 

} 0 APPROVED 
} 

} 0 DISAPPROVED 

Olga Ramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe                                                      07/06/2023



























Renewal of Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and Garden Mart Inc. for Grounds 
keeping and Maintenance Services of City Wide Landscapes, Medians, and Gateways

/s/John Lowe                                                                     07/06/2023

CITY OF CARLSBAD

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM

DEPARTMENT: Streets

SUBJECT:

By: K.C. Cass, Deputy City
Administrator QpP DATE: 7/6/2023

BACKGROUND, ANALYSIS AND IMPACT: (Safety and Welfare/Financial/Personnel/Infrastructure/etc.)

The City is requesting to renew the agreement with Garden Mart Inc. for Grounds Keeping and
Maintenance Services of City Wide Landscapes, Medians, Gateways and Properties. The current
Agreement will expire on July 14, 2023.

This agreement will be for a period of one year, beginning on July 14, 2023 and ending on July
14, 2024.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: If it is the pleasure of the City Council, it is recommended
the Agreement with Garden Mart be approved

BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION:
P & Z Lodgers Tax Board Cemetery Board } approved

Museum Board San Jose Board Water Board
Library Board N. Mesa Board Committee * disapproved

Reviewed by:
City Administrator: Date:

Council Meeting Date: July 11, 2023

Attachments: Agreement



THIRD RENEWAL OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF CARLSBAD
AND THE GARDEN MART, INC. FOR

GROUNDS KEEPING AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES
OF CITYWIDE LANDSCAPES, MEDIANS, GATEWAYS AND PROPERTIES

FOR ONE YEAR

THIS THIRD RENEWAL OF AGREEMENT is entered into at Carlsbad, New Mexico, this
IH day of July, 2023, by and between the CITY OF CARLSBAD, New Mexico, a municipal
corporation, hereinafter referred to as "City" and THE GARDEN MART, INC., a New Mexico
corporation, hereinafter referred to as "GMI".

WHEREAS, there are landscapes, medians, gateways, and properties throughout the City
which require City-provided grounds keeping and maintenance services; and

WHEREAS, the City requested proposals for the provision of such services on those
properties in its RFP No. 2019-18; and

WHEREAS, the Carlsbad City Council awarded RFP No. 2019-18 to The Garden Mart, Inc.;
and

WHEREAS, on 11October 2019, the City and GMI entered into a one (1) year agreement
for the provision of grounds keeping and landscape maintenance at the listed properties,
hereinafter referred to as the "2019 Agreement"; and

WHEREAS, the parties renewed the agreement for three (3) months beginning on 14
October 2020 with a modification to the termination provision; and

WHEREAS, the parties renewed the agreement for six (6) months beginning on 13 January
2021under the same terms and conditions as the original 2019 Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the parties renewed the agreement for one (1) year beginning on 13 July,
2022;

WHEREAS, the parties wish to renew the agreement again for one (1) additional year
beginning on 13 July 2023 under the same terms and conditions as the original 2019 Agreement,
except as modified in the renewal dated 14 October, 2020. .

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR THE CONSIDERATION SPECIFIED HEREIN THE PARTIES AGREE AS
FOLLOWS:

1. Attachments. Attached to this renewal are the following documents:
A. 2019 Agreement. The Agreement Between the City of Carlsbad and Garden Mart,
Inc. for Grounds Keeping and Maintenance Services of Citywide Landscapes, Medians,
Gateways and Properties, dated the 11th day of October 2019, hereinafter referred to as



the "2019 Agreement".
B. First Renewal. The First Renewal of the Agreement Between the City of Carlsbad
and Garden Mart, Inc. for Grounds Keeping and Maintenance Services of Citywide
Landscapes, Medians, Gateways and Properties, dated the 13th of October 2020,
hereinafter referred to as the "First Renewal".
C. Six Months Renewal. The Six Months Renewal Agreement Between the City of
Carlsbad and Garden Mart, Inc. for Grounds keeping and Maintenance Services of
Citywide Landscapes, Medians, Gateways and Properties, dated the 13th day of January,
2021.
D. Second Renewal. The Second Renewal of the Agreement Between the City of
Carlsbad and Garden Mart, Inc. for Grounds Keeping and Maintenance Services of
Citywide Landscapes, Medians, Gateways and Properties, dated the 14th day of July, 2022,
hereinafter referred to as the "Second Renewal".
E. Third Renewal. The Third Renewal of the Agreement Between the City of Carlsbad
and Garden Mart, Inc. for Grounds Keeping and Maintenance Services of Citywide
Landscapes, Medians, Gateways and Properties, dated the day of July, 2023,
hereinafter referred to as the "Third Renewal".

2. One Year Renewal. The parties agree to renew the 2019 Agreement as amended by the
First, Six Months and Second Renewal for a third one (1) year term beginning on 14 July 2023
and ending on 14 July 2024.

3. Terms. This renewal shall be under the same terms and conditions, and the parties shall
have the same rights and responsibilities as in the 2019 Agreement as amended by the First
Renewal.

4. Captions. The captions of any paragraphs or sections hereof are made for convenience
only and shall not control or affect the meaning or construction of any of the provisions thereof.

5. Exhibits. Any instrument or document made and attached to this Agreement shall
constitute a part hereof as though set forth in full in the body of this Agreement, whether made
a part hereof by reference or whether made a part hereof by attachment.

CITY OF CARLSBAD:

DALE JANWAY, MAYOR
ATTEST:

CITY CLERK



• STATE OF NEW MEXICO
NOTARY PUBLIC

OLGA E. RAMIREZ
i COMMISSION# 1080810
/ EXPIRES: SEPTEMBER 21, 2023

STATE OF NEW MEXICO

COUNTY OF EDDY
)ss.

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this | day of
JlxlkJ , 2023, by MARK WALTERSCHEID, President, The Garden Mart, Inc.

My Commission Expires:

UBLIC



SECOND RENEWAL OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF CARLSBAD
AND THE GARDEN MART, INC. FOR

GROUNDS KEEPING AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES
OF CITYWIDE LANDSCAPES, MEDIANS, GATEWAYS AND PROPERTIES

FOR ONE YEAR

THIS SECOND RENEWAL OF AGREEMENT Is entered Into at Carlsbad, New Mexico, this
day of July, 2022, by and between the CITY OF CARLSBAD, New Mexico, a municipal

corporation, hereinafter referred to as "City" and THE GARDEN MART, INC., a New Mexico
corporation, hereinafter referred to as "GMI".

WHEREAS, there are landscapes, medians, gateways, and properties throughout the
City which require City-provided grounds keeping and maintenance services; and

WHEREAS, the City requested proposals for the provision of such services on those
properties in its RFP No. 2019-18; and

WHEREAS, the Carlsbad City Council awarded RFP No. 2019-18 to The Garden Mart,
Inc.; and

WHEREAS, on 11October 2019, the City and GMI entered into a one (1) year agreement
for the provision of grounds keeping and landscape maintenance at the listed properties,
hereinafter referred to as the "2019 Agreement"; and

WHEREAS, the parties renewed the agreement for three (3) months beginning on 14
October 2020 with a modification to the termination provision; and

WHEREAS, the parties renewed the agreement for one (1) year beginning on 13 July,
2021;

WHEREAS, the parties wish to agree to renew the agreement a second time, as
modified, for one (1) additional year beginning on 13 July 2022.

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR THE CONSIDERATION SPECIFIED HEREIN THE PARTIES AGREE AS
FOLLOWS:

1. Attachments. Attached to this renewal are the following documents:
A. 2019 Agreement. The Agreement Between the City of Carlsbad and Garden
Mart, Inc. for Grounds Keeping and Maintenance Services of Citywide Landscapes,
Medians, Gateways and Properties, dated the 11th day of October 2019, hereinafter
referred to as the "2019 Agreement".
B. First Renewal. The First Renewal of the Agreement Between the City of
Carlsbad and Garden Mart, Inc. for Grounds Keeping and Maintenance Services of
Citywide Landscapes, Medians, Gateways and Properties, dated the 13th of October



2020, hereinafter referred to as the "First Renewal".
C. Second Renewal. The Second Renewal of the Agreement Between the City of
Carlsbad and Garden Mart, Inc. for Grounds Keeping and Maintenance Services of
Citywide Landscapes, Medians, Gateways and Properties, dated the day of July,
2022, hereinafter referred to as the "Second Renewal".

2. One Year Renewal. The parties agree to renew the 2019 Agreement as amended by
the First Renewal for a second one (1) year term beginning on 14 July 2022 and ending on 14
July 2023.

3. Terms. This renewal shall be under the same terms and conditions, and the parties
shall have the same rights and responsibilities as in the 2019 Agreement as amended by the
First Renewal.

4. Captions. The captions of any paragraphs or sections hereof are made for
convenience only and shall not control or affect the meaning or construction of any of the
provisions thereof.
5. Exhibits. Any instrument or document made and attached to this Agreement shall
constitute a part hereof as though set forth in full in the body of this Agreement, whether
made a part hereof by reference or whether made a part hereof by attachment.

CITY CLERK



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
NOTARY PUBLIC

OLGA E. RAMIREZ
COMMISSION# 1080810

EXPIRES: SEPTEMBER 21, 2023

THE GARDEN MART, INC

M WALTERSCHEID, PRESIDENT

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
) ss.

COUNTY OF EDDY )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this I day of
Iu , 2022, by MARK WALTERSCHEID, President, The Garden Mart, Inc.

My Commission Expires:

3



RENEWAL OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF CARLSBAD
AND THE GARDEN MART, INC. FOR

GROUNDS KEEPING AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES
OF CITYWIDE LANDSCAPES, MEDIANS, GATEWAYS AND PROPERTIES

FOR SIX MONTHS

i THIS RENEWAL OF AGREEMENT is entered into at Carlsbad, New Mexico, this
2 day of , 2021, by and between the CITY OF CARLSBAD, New Mexico, a
} municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as "City" and THE GARDEN MART, INC., a New
< Mexico corporation, hereinafter referred to as "GMI”.
s
6 WHEREAS, there are landscapes, medians, gateways, and properties throughout the City
v which require City-provided grounds keeping and maintenance services; and
8

j WHEREAS, the City requested proposals for the provision of such services on those
io properties in its RFP No. 2019-18; and
11

j2 WHEREAS,theCarlsbad CityCouncil awarded RFPNo. 2019-18 toThe Garden Mart, Inc.;
n and
14

is WHEREAS, on 11 October 2019, the City and GMI entered into a one (1) year agreement
it for theprovision of grounds keeping and landscape maintenance at the listed properties, hereinafter
n referred to as the “2019 Agreement”; and
IB

i9 WHEREAS, the parties renewed the agreementfor three(3)months beginningon14October
io 2020 with a modification to the termination provision; and
21
a WHEREAS, the parties wish to renew the agreement, as modified, for an additional six (6)
» months beginning on 13 January 2021.
2-1

25 NOW,THEREFORE,FOR THECONSIDERATIONSPECIFIEDHEREINTHE PARTIES
26 AGREE AS FOLLOWS:
27

2B 1. Attachments. Attached to this renewal are the following documents:
29 A. 2019 Agreement, The Agreement Between the City of Carlsbad and Garden Mart,
so Inc, for Grounds Keeping and Maintenance Services of Citywide Landscapes, Medians,
3i . Gateways and Properties, dated the 11“' day of October 2019, hereinafter referred to as the
32 “2019 Agreement”.
31 B. First Renewal. The First Renewal of the Agreement Between the City of Carlsbad
34 and Garden Mart, Inc. for Grounds Keeping and Maintenance Services of Citywide
35 Landscapes, Medians, Gateways and Properties, dated the 13,u of October 2020, hereinafter
se referred to as the “First Renewal”.
37

38 2. Six Month Renewal. The parties agree to renew the 2019 Agreement as amended by the
39 First Renewal for the six (6) months beginning on 13 January 2021 and ending on 12 July 2021.



1 3- Terms. This renewal shall beunder the same terms and conditions, and the partiesshall have
i the same rights and responsibilities as in the 2019 Agreement as amended by the First Renewal.
i

11 Captions. The captionsof any paragraphs or sections hereof are made for convenience only
s and shall not control or affect the meaning or construction of any of the provisions thereof.

’ 5’ Exhibits. Any instrument or document made and attached to this Agreement shall constitute
» a part hereof as though set forth in full in the body of this Agreement, whether made a part hereof

" ""OlIlHV"’
jo STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
JI ) ss.
» COUNTY OF EDDY )

THE GARDEN MART, INC

4/7^=^=PRESIDENT

m
M

JJ

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this |3 day of
2020 , by MARK WALTERSCHEID, President, The Garden Mart, Inc.

17

3S

JS

40

My Commission Expires:

«12

2



FIRST RENEWAL
OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF CARLSBAD

AND THE GARDEN MART, INC, FOR
GROUNDS KEEPING AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES

OF CITYWIDE LANDSCAPES, MEDIANS, GATEWAYS AND PROPERTIES

THIS RENEWALOF AGREEMENT is entered into at Carlsbad, New Mexico, this 13
day of DgAJryy 2020, by and between the CITY OF CARLSBAD, New Mexico, a
municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as ’’City" and THE GARDEN MART, INC., a New
Mexico corporation, hereinafter referred to as "GMI”.

6 WHEREAS, there are landscapes, medians, gateways, and properties throughout the City
7 which require City-provided grounds keeping and maintenance services; and
3

» WHEREAS, the City requested proposals for the provision of such services on those
w properties in its RFP No. 2019-18; and

WHEREAS, theCarlsbad CityCouncil awardedRFP No. 2019-18 to The Garden Mart,Inc.;
and

WHEREAS, on II October 2019, the City and GMI entered into an agreement for the
u provision ofgrounds keepingand landscape maintenance at the listed properties,hereinafter referred
n to as the “2019 Agreement”; and

t» WHEREAS, the parties wish to renew the 2019 Agreement for three months beginning on
ia 14 October 2020 with a modification.M

SI

22

23

24
25

2$

27

2»

29

50

31

32

33

NOW,THEREFORE,FORTHE CONSIDERATIONSPECIFIED HEREINTHEPARTIES
AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

Attached to this renewal is the following document:
A. The Agreement Between the City of Carlsbad and Garden Mart, Inc. for Grounds
Keeping and Maintenance Services of Citywide Landscapes, Medians, Gateways and
Properties, dated the 11'” day of October 2019, hereinafter referred to as the “2019
Agreement”.

2. Thepartiesagree to renewthe2019 Agreementfor the three months beginningon14October
2020 and ending on 13 January 2021.

34 3. This renewal shall be under the same terms and conditions, and the parties shall have the
J5 same rightsand responsibilities as in the2019 Agreementexcept that Paragraph 26shall be amended
?g to state:
37

38

26. Termination. Either partymay terminate this Agreementwithout causebyproviding
the other part with written notice of its intention to terminate this Agreement at least fifteen



1 (15) days prior to the termination date. By such termination, neither party may nullify
2

>
4

J

6

7

H

9

10

II

12

13
14

15

1«

1?

1«

IS

20

21

22

22

24

25

25

3?

20

29

M

31

32

23

34

M
36

37

JS

.10

40

41

obligations already incurred prior to the date of termination of the Agreement. However,
neither partyshall have any obligation to peiform services ormake payment for suchservices
rendered after such date of termination.

4. Captions. The captions of any paragraphs or sections hereof are made for convenience only
and shall not control or affect the meaning or construction of any of the provisions thereof.

5. Exhibits. Anyinstrument ordocument madeand attached to this Agreementshall constitute
a part hereof as though set forth in full in the body of this Agreement, whether made a part hereof
by reference or whether made a part hereof by attaphment.

CITY OF CARLSBAD:
O.K

il. 'Z. '-a DAtEIAMlVAY, MAYOR

City CLE^K

THE GARDEN MART, INC

i ‘ MARK WALTERSCHEID, PRESIDENT

STA’IEOHN^.MEXICO )
)ss,

COUNTY OF EDDY )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day ofP&bbar 2020, byMARK WALTERSCHEID, President, The Garden Mart, Inc.

My Commission Expires:

NOTARY PUBLIC '

42

2



2

3

4

5

«
)

X

9

10

n
a
n
14

15

16

17

18

I?
ill

21

33

21

25

26

27

3»

JV

31

32

33

AV

37

id

.W

AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE CITY OF CARLSBAD AND GARDEN MART, INC.

FOR GROUNDS KEEPING AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES
OF CITYWIDE LANDSCAPES, MEDIANS, GATEWAYS, AND PROPERTIES

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into at Carlsbad, New Mexico, this ; I ^ay of
, 2019, by and between the CITY OF CARLSBAD, New Mexico, a municipal corporation,

hereinafter referred to as "City," and THE GARDEN MART, INC., a New Mexico corporation,
hereinafter referred to as "GMI".

WHEREAS, there are landscapes, medians, gateways, and properties throughout the City
which require grounds keeping and maintenance services; and

WHEREAS, the City requested proposals for the provision of such services on those
properties in its RFP No. 2019-18; and

WHEREAS, The Garden Mart, Inc, submitted a response to the RFP; and

WHEREAS, GMl’s response was recommended by a selection committee; and

WHEREAS, the Carlsbad City Council awarded RFP No. 2019-18 to GMI subject to the
negotiation of a satisfactory agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, the parties, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
herein contained, agree as follows:

1 , Property Descriptions. The City of Carlsbad property ("Property11or “Properties”) subject
Io this agreement are those locations listed on the attached Exhibit “A".

2. AS IS Condition. Prior to the commencement of this Agreement, GMJ has fully examined
and inspected the Properties and all improvements, buildings, fixtures, appliances, and personal
property therein. GMI accepts the Properties and such improvements, buildings, fixtures,appliances,
and personal property io their existing condition and state of repair. GMI accepts them in an AS IS
CONDITION. GMI agrees that no representations, statements, or warranties, express or implied,
have been made by or on behalf of the City in respect thereto, including, but not limited to their
suitability for any purpose, and the City shall in no event be liable for any latent defects.

3, GMI Provided Services. GMI shall provide the City with full grounds keeping and
maintenance services at the Properties including, but not limited to, the following:

A. General Services. General Services as defined herein.
B Grounds Keeping and Mai ritenanceServices. Grounds Keeping and Maintenance
Sendees as defined herein.



J

s
9

10

II

11

n
M

»
16

17

It

19

10

31

a
»
M

IS

20
17

2«

»
)0

4. General Services. “General Services” shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the
following:

A, Meetings. Attend such meetings as may be requested from time to time by the
governing body of the City ofCarlsbad, the City Administrator, or City staff.
B. Monthly Reports. Prepare and submit monthly maintenance reports no later than
the 5"’ of each month. The report shall be ina format and contain the information required
by the City, including, but not limited to an accounting of the services provided at each
Property, the number of man-hours of services provided, and a description of the service
provided.
C. Annual Budget. No later than March 1” of each year, GMI shall provide the City
with an itemized budget for the City’s following fiscal year’s expenses for the items to be
provided by the City pursuant to Paragraph 6, below.
D. Additional Duties. Such additional duties as may from time to time be mutually
agreed to by theparties.
E. Equipment. Provideall equipmentand tools required tosatisfactorily andefficiently
perform the services and duties required by this Agreement and all acquisition, repair,
maintenance, and operational costs of such equipment or tools. All equipment shall be
specifically designed and developed by its manufacturer for foe intended task within the
scopeofservices renderedby GMI. All equipment used shall be sized appropriately for the
work within foe operating environment of the Properties.
F. Materials. Provideallmaterials requiredtosatisfactorilyandefficientlyperformthe
services and duties required by this Agreement including, but not limited to:

L Pesticides;
ii. Materials required for vermin control;
fit. Fertilizers;
iv. Herbicides; and
v. Irrigation system materials needed for foe maintenance and repair of the
irrigation systems including damage caused by traffic accidents.

G. Labor. Provide all managerial, supervisory, skilled and unskilled labor required to
satisfactorily and efficiently perform the services and duties required by this Agreement.

jj

m 5, Grounds Keeping and Maintenance Services. “Grounds Keeping and Maintenance
ja Services” shall include all services required to assure that the Properties are well maintained,
M manicured, and provide a safe and attractive environment. Those services shall include, but not
M necessarily be 1imited to, the following:
j4 A. Weed Control Program. GMI shall develop, implement, and maintain a written
)7 Weed Control Program to minimize the occurrence ofweeds within foeProperties. Weeds
n that do occuron foeProperties shall bekeptshorterthanfiveinches(5,')tallatalltimes. The
3» Program shall utilize a combination of herbicides, biological controls, and mechanical
w eradication, The written Program shall be provided to the City for its review and approval

prior to implementation. Should theCity wish to change the previously approved Program,
« it shall notify GMIin writing of the proposed change, GMI shall then estimate foe increase
« or decrease in the cost of this Agreement should the change be implemented, GMIshallnot
m implement foe change until authorized to do so by foe City in writing.

2



10

11

12

13

14

W
1«

17

II

19

20

21

22

M

24

25

26

27

26

29

10

31
M

33

34

35

3«

37

36

39
40

41

41

43

B, FertilizerProgram. GMIshah develop, implement,andrnaintamawrittenFertilizer
Application and Management Program to develop and maintain a continuing program to
appropriately fertilize all beneficial vegetation within the Properties, The written Program
shall be provided to theCity for its review and approval prior to implementation. Should the
City wish to change the previously approved Program, it shall notify GMI in wilting of the
proposed change. GMI shall then estimate the increase or decrease in the cost of this
Agreement should the change be implemented. GMI shall not implement the change until
authorized to do so by the City in writing.
C. Water Management Program. GMI shall develop, implement, and maintain a
written Water ManagementProgram toappropriatelyirrigateall vegetationon the Properties,
The Program shall maximize plant health, minimize water use and possible damage to City
property, and eliminate any over-water use. The program shall include the following
elements, as applicable:

i, Continuous evaluation of the moisture content of all soils to assure that all
vegetation receives adequate moisture for optimal growth, Methods of moisture
content detection shall include observation of plant stress, soil probing, and meter
monitoring as needed. Irrigation scheduling will be performed to encourage deep
roots, including deep watering through use of multiple repeat cycles.
ii. Random checkson an ongoing basis of all sprayheads and other components
of the systems such that each entire system is checked each month to assure that all
components of the irrigation systems are kept in proper working order, as per
manufacturers’ specifications. Malfunctioning components shall be corrected
immediately.- iii. Weekly or bimonthly reprogramming of the irrigation controllers. Soil
moisture levels shall be inspected throughout planted areas, and appropriate
adjustments made to the irrigation schedule. The irrigation schedules shall comply
with City mandated “odd/even address” wateringschedules using the location of the
water meter for the section as the applicable street address,
iv. Monthly activation of all irrigation valves. Each valve shall be operated
individually to inspect for and correct the following conditions:

a. Misaligned irrigation heads;
b. Clogged or obstructed heads;
c. Missing or damage heads;
d, Low-head drainage conditions; t
e, Overspray onto impervious or non-landscaped surfaces;
f. Poor coverage or uniformity; *

g. Stuck valves;
h. Broken risers, laterals, or mains;
i. Irrigation spray nozzles not of a height sufficient to clear the highest
unmowed turf, and
j. Unbalance of various heads bn a single circuit,

v, Irrigation system pressure to be checked and adjusted at least monthly to
insure efficient operation of irrigation systems.

3



i vi. AU irrigation replacement parts to be checked and adjusted at least monthly
2 to insure efficient operation of irrigation systems.
s vii. Turfsprayheads tobe uniforminoutput and keptadjustedforaccurate throw.
4 If the irrigation isnot adequate toprovide uniformcoverage, Garaz shall upgrade the
5 system to achieve site efficiency.
« The written Program shall be provided to the City for its review and approval prior to
7 implementation. Should the City wish to change the previously approved Program, it shall
i notify GMI in writing of the proposed change. GMI shall then estimate the increase or
s decrease in the cost of this Agreement should the change be implemented. GMI shall not

w implement the change until authorized to do so by the City in writing.
ii D. Plant Program. GMI shall develop, implement, and maintain a written Plant
i2 Supplement and Replacement Program to appropriatelysupplement existing vegetation and
13 replace vegetation that requires replacement for safety, aesthetics, or because of loss or
14 damage. All plant materials shall be of the type, kind, and size capable of growth and
is aesthetically comparable to and compatible with adjacent plantings, The written Program
in shall be provided to the City for its review and approvalprior to implementation. Should the
17 City wish to change the previously approved Program, it shall notify GMI in writing of the
i« proposed change. GMI shall then estimate the increase or decrease in the cost of this
w Agreement should the change be implemented. GMI shall not implement the change until
w authorized to do so by the City in writing.
2i E. General Grounds Maintenance. Complete grounds keeping and maintenance
22 services at the Properties as described in Exhibit B.
»
m 6. City Provided Services. The City shall be responsible for the following at the Properties:
2> A. Utility Services. The City shall pay all reasonable utility expenses including, where
a available, water service and electric service.
27 B. Plants. The Cityshall provide landscaping trees, shrubs, and other plants as needed
is asadditions to or replacementsof damagedor deadvegetation. GMIshallberesponsiblefor
as labor and materials to install the trees, shrubs, and other plants.
M C. Repairs. Except fordamage orvandalism byGMTs officers, employees, or agents,
21 and for damage to the irrigation systems, the City shall provide structural, electrical and
»2 mechanical repair or maintenance of Properties and those repairs covered by the City’s
23 insurance.
34 E. Excess Materials. All items and materials acquired by the City that exceed the
23 actual quantities required for a specific task shall remain the propertyof the City and shall
34 only be used for other purposes at or on a Propertyas specifically authorized by the City in
27 writing.
38 F, Reimbursement. The City shall not reimburse GMI for any materials acquired by
39 GMI unless the acquisition was authorized by the City in writing prior to the acquisition,

4i 7. Compensation. In consideration for all services provided pursuant to this Agreement, the
4z City shall pay GMI Twelve Thousand Five Hundred dollars and OO/lOOths per month
43 ($12,500.00/mo.) plus applicable gross receipt taxes. GMI shall be responsible for the payment of

4



i all taxes and fees. GMI shall submit an invoice to the City by the fifth (5th).day of each month for
i the previous month’s services.
3

i 8. Term. The term of this Agreement shall be for one (1) year beginning on the 14th day of
} October 2019, and terminating on the 13111 day of October 2020. This Agreement may be renewed
6 for three (3) additional one (1) year terms upon the mutual agreement of the parties upon suchterms
7 and conditions as may be mutually agreeable. Not later than thirty (30) days before the expiration
» of this contract, if both parties desire to renew for an additional year, the parties shall meet to
? negotiate renewal terms and conditions, including compensation,

10
» 9. Compliance with Laws. GMI and its officers, employees, and agents shall comply withall
u applicable local, state, and federal laws, rules, regulations, and policies. In the event GMI or its
43 officers,employees,or agents should fail to complywith all applicable local, state, and federal laws,
14 rules,regulations, and policies,GMIshall immediately cease the noncompliance and inform the City
w Administrator of the matter. Within five (5) days, GMI shall also notify the City Street
k Superintendent in writing of that event,
17

u 10, Licenses. GMI and its officers, employees, and agents shall obtain and continuously
u maintain any and all permits, licenses, or certifications that may be necessary to carry out the
m operations contemplatedbythis Agreement, Suchpermits, licenses, andcertifications shall include,
2i but not limited to, those needed to use pesticides, vermin control, fertilizers, and herbicides, and to
2i perform irrigation system installation, repair, and maintenance, GMIshallannually provide the City
a with written proof that he, its officers, employees, or agents have the permits, licenses, and
24 ccrtifications that may necessary to carry out die operations contemplated by this Agreement, GMI
u shall provide the City with written notice of any change in any permit, license, or certification and
2« furnish to the City written proof of acquirement of a new or substitute permit, license, or
2? certification. In the event GMI or its officers, employees, or agents should cease to be properly
28 permitted, licensed, or certified, he shall immediately inform the City Administrator and shall
29 immediately cease its operations pursuant to this Agreement. Within five (5) days of ceasing to be
» properly permitted, licensed, or certified, GMIshall also notify the City in writing of that event,
31

32 11, Prevention of Wasteand Damage. GMIshall use all reasonablecautions to preventwaste,
33 damage, or injury to the Properties, structures, vegetation, monuments, utilities or other
34 improvements in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement. GMI shall be solely
35 responsible for anydamage to or destruction of the Properties’ structures, vegetation, monuments,
a utilities or other improvements caused by the acts, willful or otherwise, pf GMPs officers,
37 employees, or agents.
3?
M 12. Reporting Damage. GMI shall immediately verbally report any vandalism, damage, or
40 destruction to the Properties or structures, vegetation, monuments, utilities or other improvements
4i whether caused by GMIor not as well as any repair or maintenance needed to be performed by the
42 City. He shall also report such matters in writing withinfive (5) business days.
43

5



i 13- Storage of Equipment and Materials. GMI shall be solely responsible for the proper
i handling and storage of all equipment, materials, and other items including materials provided by
j the City. All equipment, materials, junk, debris, waste, and unsightly mater shall be removed
4 promptly from the Properties. There shall beno storage on the Properties overnight, The Cityshall
» not be responsible for any damage or injury to equipment, materials, or other items. GMIshall be
« solely responsible for the securityof all equipment, materials, or other items, and for insuring them.
? GMI shall be solely responsible for any waste or damage to or destruction of the City provided
5 materials or its own equipment and materials caused by the acts, willful or otherwise, by GMTs
j officers, employees, or agentsorGMTsfailureto provideadequate insurance, security, or protection

io from inclement weather.
11

ii 14. Structural Changes. GMIshallnot make anystructural changes to the Properties or to any
n structure or building used by GMI, without the prior written consent of the City. AU such changes
1« shall be performed in a workmanlike manner and shall be done in accordance with all applicable
u laws, rules, and regulations. All alterations, additions, and improvements to the Properties shall
k become a part of the Properties and the sole property of the City, except as agreed by the parties in
v writing. GMI shall also;
is A, City Approval. Submit all plans and specifications to the City Administrator for
b written approval prior to commencing any work; and
so B. Billing. File with and obtain the approval of all plans and specifications with all
si governmental departments and authorities having jurisdiction, prior to the commencement
» of any work.
ii C. Licensed Contractor. All such activity shall be done by appropriately licensed
m contractors and shall be done in accordance with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations.
M
m 15, JRight to Enter and Inspect. The City shall have the right to enter the Properties and to
2? inspect tireProperties or to have a third partyenter and inspect theProperties and all improvements,
it structures, and appurtenances at any reasonable time
29

io 16. Surrender of Properties. GMI shall, on the last day of the term of this Agreement or on
si earlier termination and forfeitureof this Agreement,peaceably and quietly surrender and deliver the
32 Properties free of subtenancies, including all additions and improvements constructed or placed
33 thereon byGMI, except movable trade fixtures, all in good condition and repair. Any trade fixtures
« or personal property belonging to GMI, not removed within 30 days after the termination of this
js Agreement, and if the Cityshall so elect,shall be deemed abandoned and become thepropertyofthe
sb City without any payment or offset thereof.
17

» 17. Destruction of Properties. In the event a Property or any portion of it is totally destroyed
a? or so partially destroyed or damaged as to render it incapable of reasonable use, then the City may,
4 at its sole discretion, choose to repair the damage or destruction or choose to terminate this
4i Agreement without incurring any penalty or further liability.
41

6



1 18. Records. For the term of this Agreement and for five (5) years after the expiration or
2 termination of this Agreement, GMI shall maintain copies of all records regarding any and all
s activities he conducts pursuant to this Agreement. The Cityshall have the right to inspect and copy

such records upon reasonable notice to GMI.
5

« 19. Indemnification, GMI agrees to indemnify, save, and hold harmless the City, its officers,
? and employees against all liability, claims, damages, losses, or expenses of every kind, including
b reasonable attorneys* fees together with costs and expenses of litigation, arising out of, from, or
p associated in any manner with the acts or omissions of GMI, its officers, employees, or agents.

w
n 20. Insurance. At all times material to this Agreement:
i2 A. Public Liability Insurance. GMI shall obtain and maintain, at its own expense,
ij public liability and automobile liability insurance insuring against such claims and which
m insurance names the City as an additional insured. This insurance shall have an aggregate
is limit in the amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000.00).
is B. Certificate Insurance. GMI shall provide the City with a current Certificate of
n Insurance. The insurance shall be with a company or companies licensed and authorized to
is do business in the State of NewMexico. GMIshall annually furnish to the Citya Certificate
is of Insurance for the above required insurances. GMI shall provide the City with notice of
m anychange thereof, and furnish to the Cityevidenceof acquirementof asubstitute therefore,
ji and payment of the premium thereof.
22 C. Tort Claims Act. The City and its “public employees” as defined in the New
w Mexico Tort Claims Act do not waive any sovereign immunity, defense, or limitation of
»4 liability pursuant to law. No provision of this Agreement modifies and/or waives any
25 provision of the NewMexico Tort Claims Act.
26

27 21. Release. GMI, upon final payment of the amount due under this Agreement, releases the
2» City,it’sofficers,andemployeesfrom all liabilities, claims, and obligationswhatsoever arising from
2» or under this Agreement. GMI agrees not to purport to bind the City of Carlsbad, unless GMIhas
so express written authority to do so, and then only within the strict limits of that authority.
31

32 22. Default or Breach. Each of the following event shall constitute a default or breach of this
33 Agreement:
34 A. Bankruptcy. If GMI, during the term of this Agreement, shall file a petition in
35 bankruptcyorinsolvencyor for reorganizationunderanybankruptcyact,orshall voluntarily
36 take advantage of any such act by answer or otherwise, or shall make an assignment for the
st benefit of creditors.
38 B. Involuntary Proceedings. If involuntaryproceedings under any bankruptcylaw or
3» insolvency act shall be instituted against GMI, or if a receiver or trustee shall be appointed
40 forallor substantially all of thepropertyof GMIandsuchproceedings shall notbedismissed
4i or the receivership or trusteeship vacated within sixty (60) days after the institution or
42 appointment.

7



j C, Failure to Comply. If GMI fails to perform or comply with any of the conditions
t of this Agreement, and if die nonperformanceshall continue for aperiod of fifteen,(15) days
3 after notice thereof by the City to GMI, or, if the performance cannot be reasonably had
4 within the fifteen (15) day period, and GMI shall not in good faith have commenced
j performance within the fifteen (15) dayperiod and then diligently proceeded to completion
« of performance.
7 D, Transfer of Agreement. If this Agreement shall be transferred to or shall pass to or
8 devolve to any other person or party, except in the manner specified herein.

jo 23. Effect of Default. In the event ofdefault hereunderas set forth in this Agreement, therights
u of the non-defaulting party shall be as follows:
in A. Cancel, The non-defaulting party shall have the right to cancel and terminate this
is Agreement, Onexpiration of the time fixed in thenotice, this Agreementand all rights, title,
M and interest of the defaulting party hereunder shall terminate in the same manner and with
is the same force and effect, except as to the defaulting party’s liability, as if the date fixed in
i« the notice of cancellation and termination were the end of the term herein originally
i? determined.

B. Payment. The non-defaulting party may elect, but shall not be obligated, to make
w any payment required ofthedefaultingpartyherein or comply with anyagreement, term,or
20 condition required hereby to be performed by the defaulting party, and the non-defaulting
si partyshall have theright to enter the Properties for thepurpose ofdirecting or remedyingany
22 such default and to remain until the default has been corrected or remedied; but any
a expenditure for correction by the non-defaulting party shall not be deemed to waive or
24 release the default of the defaulting party or the right of the non-defaulting party to take any
a action as may be otherwise permissible or to seek other remedyunder the law.
25

27 24. Non-Waiver. Waiver by the City of any default in performance byGMI of anyofthe terms
2» or conditions contained in this Agreement shall not be deemed a continuing waiver of that default
29 or any subsequent default.
30

3i 25. Funding Availability, The funding of this Agreement is subject to the availability and
» appropriation of funds by the City Council of Carlsbad, New Mexico. If sufficient funding is not
3i available or not appropriated by the City Council, then this Agreement is terminated and the City
m shall not incur anypenalty or further liability.
35

is 26. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause by providing the
3? other party with written notice of its intention to terminate this Agreementat least ninety (90) days
id prior to the termination date, By such termination, neither party may nullify obligations already
i? incurred prior to the date of termination of the Agreement. However, neither party shall have any
w obligation to perform services or make payment for such services rendered after such date of
4j termination.
42

8



1 27- Entirety of Agreement. This Agreement incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and
2 understandings between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof, and all such
3 covenants, agreements, and understandings havebeen merged intothiswritten Agreement. No prior
4 agreement or understanding, verbal or otherwise, of the parties or their agents shall be valid or
j enforceable unless embodied in this Agreement. The parties expressly waive any other or further
» representations, warranties, or agreements not set forth in this document This Agreement cannot
? be changed except bya writteninstrument subsequently executedwith thesame formalities as with
b this Agreement.
9

io 28. Assignment of Agreement. Neither GMInor its successors or assigns, if any, shall assign,
u transfer, mortgage, pledge, or encumber any interest in or right to this Agreement or the Properties
n without theprior written approval of theCity. If there is anapproved assignment, transfer,mortgage,
n pledge,orencumbrance, GMIshall continue to be liablehereunder in accordance with the termsand
14 conditions of this Agreement and shall not be released from the performance of the terms and
w conditions hereof. The consent by the City to an assignment, transfer, mortgage, pledge, or
» encumbrance shall not be construed to relieve GMI from obtaining the express written consent of
w the City to any future transfer of interest
u . .

19 29. Independent Contractor. GMI, its officers, employees, and agents are independent
zu contractors performing professional services for the City and are not employees of the City. GMI
2i and its officers, employees, and agents shall not accrue leave, retirement, insurance, bonding, use
22 of city vehicles, or any other benefits afforded to the employees of the City of Carlsbad as a result
a of this Agreement
24

k 30, Workers’ Compensation. GMIshall complywithstatelawsandrulesapplicable toworkers
26 compensation benefits for its employees. If GMI fails to comply with the Workers* Compensation
27 Act and applicable rules when required to do so, this agreement may be terminated by the City.
28

2« 31. Workplace Safety, GMI shall comply with all local, state, and federal laws, rules, and
so regulations related to the safe completion of all work, including, but not limited to complying with
3i thestandards find requirements of the Manual onUniformTrafficControl Devices whenapplicable,
32 GMI shall maintain an active workplace safety program which includes, but is not limited to safe
33 work practices, the use of safety gear, and traffic control and vehicle and equipment operational
34 safety,
33 ’

* 321 Procurement Code Penalties. The Procurement Code, NMSA 1978, Sections 13-1-28 et
37 al., imposes civil and criminal penalties for its violation. In addition, the New Mexico criminal
3» statutes impose felony penalties for illegal bribes, gratuities, and kickbacks.
w
w 33. Campaign Contribution Disclosure. TheProcurement Code, NMSA 1978, Sections13-1-
4i 28, et al., requirescertainprospective contractors to submita fullycompleted campaigncontribution
42 disclosure statement. GMI states that he has complied with all such applicable requirements.
43

9



34. Notices. All notices permitted or required by the terms of this Agreement shall be in writing
and be deemed to have been duly given and delivered, if mailed, certified postage prepaid:

If to City: If to GMI:
The City of Carlsbad
c/o City Administrator
P.O. Box 1 569

Mark Waltcrschcid, President
400 E. Hamilton
P.O. Box 5093

Carlsbad, NM 88221-1569 Carlsbad, NM 88221
The parties shall notify each other in writing of any change in the above information.

10 35. New Mexico Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with New
ii Mexico law. The parties agree that, in the event any legal action arising out of this Agreement is
n permitted to be bought other than in arbitration, such action shall be brought in the District Court
u of Eddy County, New Mexico for the Fifth Judicial District. The parties expressly consent to both
i.i in personam and subject matter jurisdiction of the Eddy County District Court and agree that venue
is shall properly lie in the Eddy County, New Mexico District Court.
16

n 36. Arbitration. Should anydispute arise between the parties in connection with the Agreement
u and ifsuch dispute cannot be resolved by discussion between the parties, the parties agree to submit
is the unresolved dispute to binding arbitration in lieu of litigation. The parties expressly consent to
?.a holding all arbitration proceedings in Eddy County, New Mexico.
21

>2 37. Captions. The captions of any articles, paragraphs, or sections hereof are made for
33 convenience only and shall not control or affect the meaningor construction of any of the provisions
m thereof.
22

2ft

27

28

J!>

30

35

36

3?

38

J9

«1

41

42

4.1

38. Exhibits. Any instrument ordocument made and attached to this Agreement shall constitute
a part hereof as though set forth in fu II in the body of this Agreement, whether made a part hereof
by reference or whether made a part hereof by attachment.

CITY OF CARLSBAD:

ATTEST:

CITY CLERK

10



THE GARDEN MART, INC.

io

u
12

13

M

H

16

17

It

STATE OF NEW MEXICO • )
) ss. ,

COUNTY OF EDDY )

The foregoing instrument was signed and acknowledged before me this /J day of
, 2019, byMARKWALTERSCHEID, asPresident ofTheGarden Mart, Inc.

11



EXHIBIT A

Properties to be Maintained

1, Artesia Highway Entrance
Artesia Highway (285) from the intersection of Pierce and Camp to the City Limit Sign including
trimming and cleaning concrete medians and sidewalks,

2. North Canal Street
North Canal St. (285) from “Midtown Y” to Pierce Street ending at the Alameda cross street
including medians, fenced or landscaped areas and along City sidewalks on both sides of Canal
Street and the landscaped area at the “North Y” on North Canal near Tate Branch Dodge.

3, Canyon Street Landscape
Canyon Street bounded by South Canal and Stevens, including planters mid-block on Mermod
between Canal and Canyon.

4. Greene Street (Hobbs Highway) to Muscatel Drive
HobbsHighway (GreeneStreet) from Canyon to MuscatelDrive includingmedians and both sides.

5. Hobbs Highway Entrance
Extended Hobbs Highway from Muscatel Avc to Ridgecrest Dr. including the medians and both
sides from right-of-way to right-of-way. Area to include rough mowing, trimming, and trash
removal.

6. “Midtown Y”
Medians at the intersection of Canyon and South Canal

7. “South Y”
Medians at intersection of US 62/180 andNM 285

8. National Parks Highway
National Parks Highway from its intersection with Terminal Drive (Airport Entrance) to its
intersection with Derrick Road including both sides of the highway from right-of-way to right-of-
way and including the tree lino on the west side of the highway. Area to include rough mowing,
trimming, and trash removal.

9. Airport Industrial Park
National Parks Highway bounded by Commerce Drive and Terminal Drive including the entrance
areas and landscaping mounds.



EXHIBIT#

Grounds Keeping and Maintenance Services

Complete grounds keeping and maintenance services shall include, but not be limited to the
following:

1. Implement Programs. GMI shall maintain all Properties as specified in the approved
Programs.

A. Weeds. All weeds shall be controlled as specified in the approved Weed Control
Program.
B. Fertilization. All turf and other vegetation shall be fertilized as specified in the
approved Fertilizer Application and Management Program.
C. Water. A11vegetationshall beproperlyirrigatedas specified in theapproved Water
Management Program.
D. Plants. All plants shall be supplemented and replaced as specified in the approved
Plant Supplement and Replacement Program.

2, Tree Maintenance. Tree pruning and trimming shall be performed as necessary to insure
a well manicured, well tended appearance, to promote proper growth and remove dead, diseased,
unsightlyorhazardous limbs and branches, andtoprovide adequatesightdistance for vehiclesafety.
All new treesshall be staked to allow movement (at least 6”) in the wind. Stakes shall be removed
assoon as trees are deemed established in the soil or byone yearof planting, whichevercomesfirst.
Trees shall be deep watered to encourage deep roots and discourage surface root damages. Deep
wateringis especially important duringparticularly warm weather. Potentialdamage caused bytree
roots will be identifiedon site walks. Where appropriate, root pruningshall beperformance toavoid
costly structural damages and tripping liabilities. Trees causing consistent physical damage or
nuisance can be recommended for removal. GMIshall report/recommend suchhazards to the City.

3. Shrub Maintenance. Shrubpruningand trimmingshall beperformedasnecessaryto insure
a well manicured, well tended appearance, to promote proper growth and remove dead, diseased,
unsightly or hazardous branches and vines, and to provide proper sight distance for vehicle safety.
Pruningshall be done on an as needed basis only. The intent of this style of pruning is to maintain
thenatural plantappearance. Shrubs are intended to fill plantingspacesasmuch as possible. Shrubs
on slopes are not to be pruned or shaped, but are to be allowed to spread naturally Shearing back
of shrub stems and branches is not encouraged unless the plant poses a safety hazard, or unless
directed by the City. Shrub fertilization shall be performed using slow release, complete organic
bused products in April and October, or as deemed necessaryto encourage optimal growth and plant
health.



4. Groundcoyer Maintenance. Groundcover shall be maintained to fill large areas, provide
significant color and present a lush appearance. All groundcoverareas shall be uniformly irrigated
to insure consistent growth and plant coverage in conformance with approved Water Management
Plan. Bate areas may require hand tilling of soil, addition of amendment and replanting to create
plant uniformity.

5. Trash Removal. The Properties shall be kept at all times free of unsightly materials, All
litter, debris, trash, and waste shall be removed from the Properties, In those cases where mowing
is required, the litter, debris, and trash shall be removed prior to mowing to keepfrom shredding it.
A weekly trash removal schedule shall be submitted to the City for approval. The schedule shall
include at a minium of three days per week of trash removal from all the properties described in
Exhibit “A”, above.

6. Safety, GMIshall comply with all NewMexicoDepartment ofTransportation (“NMDOT”)
safety requirements for work in an NMDOT right-of-way. Such requirements include, but are not
limited to, properly rated safety vests, personal protection equipment, and signs.



Month of June 2023

Submitted by

Scot D. Bendixsen, HR Director

City of Carlsbad
Personnel Department

Action Report



 

Beginning Termina- Transfers Transfers End of
EMPLOYEE REPORT of Month New Hires tions In Out Month

Full-Time Employees 428 8 10 1 0 427

Part-Time/Temp Employees 70 12 2 0 1 79

Total Employees 498 20 12 1 1 506

Administrative 18 1 0 0 0 19

Judicial 8 0 1 0 0 7

Finance 18 0 0 0 0 18

Police 102 3 1 0 0 104

Fire 65 0 1 0 0 64

Community Development 110 13 1 0 0 122

Planning & Regulation 14 0 1 0 0 13

Utilities 74 2 3 0 0 73

Transportation & Facilities 89 1 4 0 0 86

TOTAL 498 20 12 0 0 506

Beginning New Released End of
WEEKLY INDEMNITY of Month Claims To Work Terminated Month

Employees on WI 3 1 2 0 3

UNEMPLOYMENT Claims Claims Claims Claims Claims Claims
CLAIMS Received Returned Denied Approved Pending Appealed

Current Month 0 0 0 0 0 0

City of Carlsbad
Personnel Department Action Report

Month of June 2023



Number

DRUG TESTS Given VACANCIES BID Department

Pre-employment 11 Account Clerk 1, part-time Finance

Probationary 0 Executive Secretary Waste Water

Post Accident 27 Maintenance Superintendent Garage

Random 0 Shop Foreman Garage

Periodic 0

Probable Cause 0

VACANCIES Applications

ADVERTISED Received

PHYSICAL Number Electrical Inspector Pending

EXAMINATIONS Given Electrician Pending

Pre-employment 11 Firefighter/EMT Pending

Return to Work Evaluation 0 Heavy Equipment Operator Pending

Functional Capacity Evaluation 0 Museum Attendant Pending

Patrolman Pending

Seasonal Recreation Attendant Pending

Number Transit Driver, on-call Pending

TESTING Given Vactor Operator Pending

None



Olga Ramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe

Olga Ramirez
Typewriter
07/06/2023



















CITY OF CARLSBAD

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM

BACKGROUND, ANALYSIS AND IMPACT: (Safety and Welfare/Financial/Personnel/Infrastructure/etc.)

BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION:

Council Date: 7/11/2023

Lodgers Tax Board
San Jose Board
N. Mesa Board

The award is in the amount of $40,000 with a stipend in the amount of $300 to reimburse
the City for the planned marketing event that was held on June 29, 2023. This
agreement was not brought forth sooner as T-Mobile requires a planned public
announcement and the information was not to be shared until after the June 27, 2023,
announcement by the company. With City Council approval and the approved T-Mobile
Hometown Grant Program Marketing Agreement in place, the City can begin working
on the project. The deadline to spend the funds is June 30, 2024. The City is in the
process of adding the funding to the final FY24 budget.

The City submitted a grant application to T-Mobile under their T-Mobile Hometown
Grant Program at the end of March of 2023. The project has been on the City’s ICIP for
several years. The Carlsbad Public Library has been working on the digital archive
project and this grant opportunity will allow the City to renovate the Bob Scholl space
into an enclosed meeting space where the archives can be viewed. Once completed,
the Bob Scholl meeting room will cater to many community needs and events like
telehealth, job training, a place for researchers, a meeting space for youth programs,
and many more uses. The project includes enclosing the space with walls and a door,
technology upgrades and equipment, lighting, and furnishings. The City of Carlsbad is
among 25 communities that received this prestigious award in T-Mobile’s Quarter 3
competitive grant program process.

Riverwalk Rec Center Board
Water Board
Beautification Committee

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: City Council accept the T-Mobile Hometown Grant award, and
to designate the Mayor to sign the Marketing Agreement and any associated documents

DISAPPROVED

APPROVEDP&Z
Museum Board

Library Board

DEPARTMENT: Municipal Services BY: Angie Barrios-Testa, Director DATE: 6/28/2023
3

SUBJECT: Accept Award fora T-Mobile Hometown Grant for the Carlsbad Public Library’s Digital
Archive and Meeting Space

Reviewed by:
City Administrator: Date:

Olga Ramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe

Olga Ramirez
Typewriter
07/06/2023



T
T-MOBILE HOMETOWN GRANT PROGRAM

MARKETING AGREEMENT

This Hometown Grant Program Marketing Agreement, along with the Standard Terms and Conditions attached
as Exhibit A (collectively, “Agreement”), effective as of the date of full execution (“Effective Date”), sets forth
the terms and conditions between City of Carlsbad (“Hometown”) and T-Mobile USA, Inc. (“T-Mobile”),
regarding Hometown’s status as a recipient in T-Mobile’s Hometown Grant Program (“Program”) and the
parties’ mutual rights and duties in connection with the Program.

1. Program Duration: 6/27/2023 (“Start Date”) through 6/30/2024 (“End Date”)

2. Project: Carlsbad Public Library Digital & Community Placemaking Space - This project builds on
recent digital archival projects and gives access to community members who do not have internet or
technology resources. The space will also cater to the community’s needs as an event space for a variety
of topics, such as digital literacy, telehealth, and job training, and will provide resources for researchers,
toolkits for entrepreneurs, and meeting space for youth. Funding will provide technology, lighting and
furnishings as outlined in Hometown's budget. Upon completion, Hometown will supply a mutually
agreed upon attribution element marking the T-Mobile contribution to the Project.

3. Hometown website and social media accounts (“Hometown Digital Channels”):

• City of Carlsbad Webpage: https://cityofcarlsbadnm.com/
• City of Carlsbad Main Facebook Page: https://www.facebook.com/CityofCarlsbadGov
• Carlsbad Public Library Social Media Pages:

https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=l00064707305203
• Instagram: https://instagram.com/cpl88220?igshid=NTc4MTIwNjQ2YQ=

4 Program Details:
a. T-Mobile will prepare a national news release regarding Hometown’s status as a recipient in the

Program, and Hometown will repost to the Hometown Digital Channels.
b. T-Mobile will post social media content about the Program during the Program’s duration, and

Hometown will repost that content on the Hometown Digital Channels using assets and agreed upon
language provided by T-Mobile Public Relations team.

c. T-Mobile will supply an oversized check for publicity photos, which photos Hometown shall share
on the Hometown Digital Channels. T-Mobile and Hometown will agree upon a date and location
for hosting this ceremony. Food and beverages will be supplied by Hometown using funds below.

d. T-Mobile will supply window clings regarding the Program for display in city and business entities
in Hometown during the Program.

e. Hometown will use the Sponsorship Fee to pursue the community project described above
(“Project”) and, at the mid-way point and end of the Program, Hometown leadership will provide
T-Mobile with Project updates in response to a Survey issued by T-Mobile, including photos and
publicity quotes, for T-Mobile’s use on T-Mobile’s website, PR channels, and social channels and
further reposting on the Hometown Digital Channels.

f. For any in-person events in connection with Hometown’s involvement in the Program, Hometown
will follow, and ensure all Hometown staff and attendees of such event follow, all currently
applicable CDC, State, and local guidelines as they pertain to COVID-19 and all safety guidelines.

5 Sponsorship Fee: T-Mobile will pay $40,300 to Hometown for the above outlined Rights/Benefits
within 30 days following full execution of this Agreement. Included in this payment, T-Mobile will
provide $300 for town to purchase food and beverage for agreed upon check presentation.

Page 1 of 3



Accepted and Agreed to by:

T-Mobile USA, Inc. City of Carlsbad

By: By:

Name: Name:

Date: Date:

Notice Addresses:

If to T-Mobile:
T-Mobile USA, Inc.
12920 SE38‘h Street
Bellevue, WA 98006
Tel: 501-517-1470
Email: michele.shaw@t-mobile.com
Attn: Michele Shaw

If to Hometown:
City of Carlsbad
101 N. Halagueno St.
Carlsbad, NM 88220
Tel: 575-887-1191
Email: mayor.office@cityofcarlsbadnm.com
Attn: Dale W. Janway, Mayor

With a copy of legal notices:
Attn: General Counsel

Page 2 of 3



T
EXHIBIT A

In addition to the foregoing, the parties agree to the following Standard Terms and Conditions:

1. Representations and Warranties: The parties have the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this
Agreement in accordance with its terms. Hometown is solely responsible for the operation of the Project, including the
safety and security of any visitors to or participants in the Project. Hometown represents and warrants that the Project,
including the operation thereof, complies with all applicable laws and regulations. Hometown further represents and
warrants that it is responsible for securing any required license or permits to conduct the Project, and that any materials
and/or content it creates pursuant to this Agreement will not infringe on any third-party rights.

2. Use of Trademarks: T-Mobile grants to Hometown a limited, personal, non-exclusive, non-assignable, revocable, non-
sublicensable, royalty-free license or sublicense (as applicable) to use and reproduce the T-Mobile trademarks and logos
provided by T-Mobile (the “T-Mobile Marks”) solely in connection with Hometown’s performance of its obligations
hereunder during the term of the Program and such use is subject to T-Mobile’s Marks Rules available at https://www.t-
mobile.com/responsibilitv/legal/tradcinarks. Hometown hereby grants T-Mobile the right to use Hometown’s trademarks,
logos, and trade names (as provided by Hometown) as necessary for T-Mobile to exercise its rights as set forth herein. Each
party retains complete ownership of, all trademarks, logos, designs, copyrights, trade names, and all other intellectual
property rights which it owns or has rights to and which are used in any way in materials in connection with this Agreement.

3. Media: Any and all media advertising or publicity content produced by Hometown that refers to T-Mobile or includes
any T-Mobile Marks or mentions T-Mobile (“Media”) and is intended to run on any public platform or be shown at any
event (including, but not limited to, tv, radio, print, out of home, web, or social media, whether paid or unpaid), shall require
the prior written approval of the content by T-Mobile. If T-Mobile provides Media to Hometown, Media shall not to be
altered by Hometown, or any other third-party, without the express, prior written consent of T-Mobile.
4. Intentionally omitted.

5. Termination: Either party may terminate this Agreement in the event of a material breach by the other party. In addition,
T-Mobile may terminate this Agreement for any reason with five days’ notice. On any termination due to Hometown’s
breach, Hometown will refund the pro rata portion of any unearned prepaid Fees or T-Mobile will owe the pro rata portion
of any Fees earned prior to termination.
6. Force Majeure: If because of an act of God, inevitable accident, fire, lockout, strike or other labor dispute, riot or civil
commotion, act of terrorism or war, act of government or government instrumentality, or other cause beyond the reasonable
control of a party (“Force Majeure Event”), either party is unable to perform any or all of its obligations hereunder, then
such nonperformance will not be a breach of this Agreement. If due to a Force Majeure Event, T-Mobile does not receive
all the benefits included in this Agreement, Hometown will provide T-Mobile with a reasonably equivalent make good or
a pro-rata refund of the Fee paid, to be chosen at T-Mobile’s sole discretion.

7. Miscellaneous: This Agreement constitutes the whole and entire Agreement between the parties with respect to the
subject matter of this Agreement and it shall not be modified or amended in any respect, except by a written instrument
executed by both parties. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of New Mexico, without regard to
conflicts of law provisions. The parties agree that the terms of this Agreement are confidential and shall not be disclosed,
except to the respective parties’ advisors or as may be required by legal order or government authorities. All notices required
or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and may be emailed, personally delivered, sent by reputable overnight courier or
certified mail, return receipt requested, and in each case addressed to the parties using the contact information at the
beginning of this Agreement.

Page 3 of 3



Olga Ramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe

Olga Ramirez
Typewriter
07/06/2023









 
  

CITY OF CARLSBAD 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 
 Council Meeting Date: 7/11/2023                           

DEPARTMENT: Planning & Regulation 
    

 BY: Jeff Patterson,                           
Planning Director    

DATE: 7/5/2023     

SUBJECT: Business License to conduct door to door sales by Southwestern Advantage dba Rene’s 
Books, contact Rene Perzinski, pursuant to Carlsbad Code of Ordinances, Chapter 28, as amended by 
Ord. 2012-16. 
 
Applicant: Southwestern Advantage 
2604 Globe Ct. NE 
Rio Rancho, NM 87114 

BACKGROUND, ANALYSIS AND IMPACT: (Safety and Welfare/Financial/Personnel/Infrastructure/etc.) 
The applicant is requesting a business license to conduct door-to-door solicitations for the sale and 
distribution of educational books & applications.  
 
A background report was provided by the Police Department. The report was inconclusive. 
 
 
Section 28-43(b), as recently amended by Ord. 2012-16, of the Carlsbad Code of Ordinances states 
that: 

“In making its decision, the city council shall consider, but is not limited to, how 
such business will affect the health, safety and general welfare of the public; the 
level of supervision such business may require; the degree to which such 
business may attract crowds or children or affect vehicle or pedestrian traffic; the 
accessibility of the proprietors of such business if complaints made to the city are 
to be investigated; and the possibility of illegal activity transpiring at the proposed 
place of business.” 

 
In addition, Section 28-161 et. Seq. specifically applies to solicitations and Section 28-166 

states:  
“A city solicitation license may be granted only upon approval by the city council at 
a regular meeting of the council. The city council shall not consider approval 
of a solicitation license application unless the chief of police has filed a 
report on his investigation of the employer or person seeking the license.” 
(emphasis added) 

 
(see attached sections of Chapter 28) 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  As the background check into the applicant provided by the Carlsbad Police 
Department listed no problems or issues reported concerning Southwestern Advantage, the Planning 
Department would recommend approval of the Business License in compliance with Sec. 28-166 of the 
Carlsbad Code of Ordinances with the following condition: 

· The door to door solicitors shall not begin solicitation before 9:00 A.M., or continue any 
solicitation after 7:00 P.M. 

 
BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION: N/A 
 
      P & Z 
      Museum Board 
      Library Board 

 
    Lodgers Tax Board 
    San Jose Board 
    N. Mesa Board 

 
   Cemetery Board 
   Water Board 
   ______________               

Committee 

 
}   APPROVED 
}   
}  
DISAPPROVED 



 
  

Reviewed By:  

City Administrator: ________________________________________   Date: _________ 
 

ATTACHMENT(S): Application and applicable Chapter 28 sections 

 
ARTICLE VI. SOLICITATIONS 
 
Sec. 28-161. Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

Employer  means any person, firm, partnership, association, corporation or other natural or legal 
entity employing any person in the capacity of agent, servant, employee or representative on an exclusive 
or nonexclusive basis.   

Insurance agent  means any person appointed by an insurance company licensed to transact 
business in the state to act as representative in any given locality for the purpose of soliciting and writing 
insurance bonds, and such other duties in connection with the handling of the business of such agent as 
may be authorized, and paid for his services either on a commission basis or salary basis, or part by 
commission and part by salary.   

Insurance solicitor  means any person employed by the licensed agent of an insurance company 
licensed to transact business in the state to act as representative in any given locality for the purpose of 
soliciting and writing insurance or bonds, and such other duties in connection with the handling of the 
business of such agent as may be authorized, and paid for his services either on a commission basis or 
salary basis, or part by commission and part by salary.   

Solicitation  means the going in or upon or telephoning to one or more private residences in the 
city by any person not having been requested or invited to do so by the owners or occupants of such 
private residence or residences for the purpose of soliciting orders for the sale of goods, wares, 
merchandise, any article or thing of whatsoever description intended for the use or benefit of the recipient 
thereof, property either real or personal or tangible or intangible, or services; for the purpose of peddling or 
hawking any of the same; for the purpose of making or requesting appointments or procuring interviews or 
arranging for demonstrations or explanations preliminary to any actual solicitation of orders; or for the 
purpose of selling, peddling or hawking of any of the same.   
(Code 1974, § 31-1) 
 
Sec. 28-162. General prohibition. 
(a)   Violation deemed misdemeanor.  Whoever commits solicitation in violation of this article commits a 
misdemeanor.   
(b)   Elements of prima facie case of solicitation.  Any person or employer who goes in or upon or who 
telephones any one residence for the purpose of solicitation shall be deemed prima facie to have 
committed solicitation and a continued practice need not be shown.   
(Code 1974, §§ 31-2, 31-3) 
 
Sec. 28-163. Exceptions to prohibition. 

The provisions of section 28-162(a) shall not apply to any person if such person for himself, or 
through his employer, shall have: 
(1)   Posted a surety bond, with a surety licensed to do business in the state, in the amount of $1,000.00, 
to the city and the residents of the city conditioned that the person posting the surety bond shall comply 
fully with all the provisions of the ordinances of the city and the statutes of the state regulating and 
concerning the business licensed, and guaranteeing to any resident of the city that all money paid will be 
accounted for and applied according to the representations of the licensee, and further guaranteeing to 
any resident of the city doing business with such licensee that the property or services purchased will be 
delivered or furnished according to representations made by the licensee, and will conform to such 
representation, whether such representations be oral or in writing, and that the licensee's contract in all 
respects will be fully performed. Action on such bond may be brought in the name of the city to the use 
and benefit of the aggrieved person or in the name of the aggrieved person. The term of such bond shall 
be at least one year. 
a.   Any employer may purchase such a bond for any person employed by him or representing him in any 
capacity. If such bond is purchased by an employer of more than one employee, he shall purchase one 

Olga Ramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe

Olga Ramirez
Typewriter
07/06/2023



 
  

such bond in the amount of $2,000.00, which bond shall cover all persons employed by him or 
representing him in any capacity. 
b.   Any person who solicits for one or more employers shall file with the city administrator evidence of a 
surety bond having been posted by each employer in the manner heretofore described. 
(2)   Obtained a state school tax license and a city solicitation license as provided in section 28-166. 
(3)   Obtained a peddler's identification card. Such card shall be issued upon written proof of compliance 
with this section. The city administrator is authorized to require any such person to be properly identified 
by fingerprinting and photography; provided, however, that such fingerprinting shall be required only at the 
time of the filing of the original application for such card; except, that if the city administrator finds that the 
fingerprints lack sufficient clarity or are otherwise inadequate or unavailable for proper identification of 
such person, the city administrator may require such person to be fingerprinted again. The card shall be 
renewed every two years. The application of such card and every renewal thereof shall be made on such 
form as shall be provided by the city administrator. The service charge for investigation and printing the 
original card and for each renewal thereof shall be as set from time to time by the council and a schedule 
of such charges is on file in the office of the city clerk.The city council shall, after notice and hearing, 
suspend or revoke any such card upon finding such person has been convicted of a felony or 
misdemeanor involving moral turpitude in this state or any of the United States, or upon finding that such 
person gave false information on the application; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall 
prohibit the city administrator from withholding the issuance of the aforementioned identification card until 
an adequate police record check is obtained. 
(Code 1974, § 31-4) 
 
Sec. 28-164. Peddler's identification card. 
(a)   Contents.  The peddler's identification card shall contain the following:   
(1)   The name and address of the bearer. 
(2)   The name and address of each employer or, if self-employed, the words "self-employed" or, where 
applicable, both the name and address of each employer and the words "self-employed." 
(3)   A wallet-size photograph of the bearer, to be furnished by the bearer. 
(4)   The name and address of each bonding company and the employer bonded, if any. 
(5)   The legend: "THE CITY OF CARLSBAD DOES NOT ENDORSE OR GUARANTEE THE PRODUCT 
OR SERVICE OF THE BEARER OR HIS COMPANY." 
(b)   Carrying; exhibition.  Any person who solicits in the city shall carry his own peddler's identification 
card at all times while engaged in solicitation. Such card shall be exhibited to any owner or occupant of 
any residence or, upon demand, to any police officer of the city.   
(Code 1974, §§ 31-5, 31-6) 
 
Sec. 28-165. Insurance agents and insurance solicitors; real estate brokers and real estate 
salespersons. 
(a)   The provisions of sections 28-162(a), 28-163 and 28-164 shall not apply to any insurance agent or 
insurance solicitor who has obtained a license from the state superintendent of insurance, nor to any real 
estate broker or real estate salesperson who has obtained a license from the state real estate 
commission, and who carries such license on his person and who exhibits such license to any owner or 
occupant of any residence or, upon, demand, exhibits such license to any police officer of the city. 
(b)   No person shall solicit for the purchase of insurance without a license from the state superintendent 
of insurance. 
(Code 1974, § 31-9; Ord. No. 1035, 1-14-92) 
 
Sec. 28-166. Grant of license; investigation report prerequisite to consideration. 

A city solicitation license may be granted only upon approval by the city council at a regular 
meeting of the council. The city council shall not consider approval of a solicitation license application 
unless the chief of police has filed a report on his investigation of the employer or person seeking the 
license. 
(Code 1974, § 31-10) 
 
Sec. 28-167. Posted property. 

Except where he has been requested or invited to do so by the owner or occupant of property, it is 
unlawful for any person, whether or not authorized by compliance with section 28-163 to solicit, to commit 
an act of solicitation in or upon any premises if required by anyone not to do so, or if there is placed on 
such premises in a conspicuous place near the entrance thereof a sign bearing the words: "No 
Trespassing," "No Peddlers," "No Agents," "No Solicitors," "No Advertisements" or any similar notice 



 
  

indicating in any manner that the occupants of such premises do not desire to be molested or have their 
privacy disturbed. 
(Code 1974, § 31-7) 
 
Sec. 28-168. Representation of city approval prohibited. 

It is unlawful for any person to make any claim or representation, whether orally or in writing, 
during the solicitation that the city has approved, endorsed or guaranteed his product or service. 
(Code 1974, § 31-8) 
 
Sec. 28-169. Time limitation. 

No person shall engage in solicitation after 9:00 p.m. 
(Code 1974, § 31-11) 

 









CITY OF CARLSBAD 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 

  COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 7/10/2023 
DEPARTMENT: Planning, 
Engineering and Regulation 

BY: Jeff Patterson, Planning 
Director 

DATE: 7/3/2023 

SUBJECT: An Appeal of the decision by the Planning and Zoning Commission to deny a Variance 
request to reduce the required side property setback at 1209 W. Thomas St., originally heard at the 
June 5, 2023, Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.  

Appellant: 
Lucas McDonald 
1209 W. Thomas St 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 

SYNOPSIS, HISTORY and IMPACT (SAFETY AND 
WELFARE/FINANCIAL/PERSONNEL/INFRASTRUCTURE/ETC.): 

At their regularly scheduled meeting on June 5, 2023, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
considered a request for a Variance to reduce the required side property setback from a minimum 
of 5’ to 0’ at the subject property, 1209 W. Thomas St. The subject property is currently zoned “R-
1” Residential 1 District, and the required side property setback is 5’. The applicant, Lucas 
McDonald, stated in his application that he plans to place a carport structure over his current drive 
pad in order to provide shelter for his vehicles and provide a covered area for his children to play. 
The applicant stated at the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting that he would like to cover 
his existing driveway along his east property line, which would result in the carport being placed 
within the required 5’ side property setback.  

The Planning and Zoning Commission considered the application materials and the statements 
made, and voted to deny the request with a vote of four (4) in favor of denial, zero (0) 
against denial, and one (1) absent. On June 6, 2023, the applicant, Mr. McDonald, submitted
an email stating that he is appealing the decision of the Planning and Zoning Commission 
to the City Council. Mr. McDonald’s email and appeal letter are attached.  

Sec. 56-150(c) of the Zoning Ordinance states the following regarding appeals: 

Submittal Requirements. 
An appeal is made by filing a written notice of appeal with the City Administrator which clearly 
articulates the reasons for the appeal, specifically citing and explaining one or more alleged error: 

(a) In applying adopted City plans, policies and ordinances in arriving at the decision;
(b) In the appealed action or decision, including its stated facts; and/or
(c) In acting fraudulently, arbitrarily or capriciously.

Appeals are regulated by Code of Ordinances Sections 56-140(k) and 56-150(c). Section 56-
140(k) states (emphasis added): 



“Pursuant to this Zoning Ordinance, administrative decisions made by the 
Planning Director may be reviewed on appeal by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission.  All final decisions made by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission may be reviewed on appeal to the City Council.  Final decisions 
of the City Council may be appealed to District Court pursuant to Section 3-21-9 
NMSA 1978.  A decision made pursuant to this Zoning Ordinance is final unless 
an appeal is filed, within 15-days, and as required by law. Substantial deviations 
from this Zoning Ordinance are considered variances and are a form of appeal 
and may not be approved by city staff but rather shall be considered by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission.” 

Section 56-150(c) states: 
“1. Aggrieved Persons May Appeal.  

A person aggrieved by a decision of the Planning Director, City Engineer, other City 
staff, or the Planning and Zoning Commission, may file an appeal with the City 
Administrator. An aggrieved person is one who has a personal or pecuniary interest 
or property right adversely affected by the decision.  The interest must be immediate 
and substantial, not merely nominal or remote. 

2. Submittal Requirements.  
An appeal is made by filing a written notice of appeal with the City Administrator 
which clearly articulates the reasons for the appeal, specifically citing and explaining 
one or more alleged error: 
(a) In applying adopted City plans, policies and ordinances in arriving at the 

decision; 
(b) In the appealed action or decision, including its stated facts; and/or 
(c) In acting fraudulently, arbitrarily or capriciously.   

3. Review Procedures.   
(a) An appeal must be filed with the City Administrator within fifteen (15) days 

after the date of the decision.  Untimely appeals shall not be considered.   
(b) Upon receipt of a notice of appeal, the City Administrator shall transmit to 

the City Council or the Planning and Zoning Commission, whichever is the 
appellant body, all the papers and other documents which constitute the 
record relating to the action appealed.  The appeal shall be heard no later 
than forty-five (45) days from receipt of the appeal by the City Administrator, 
unless a waiver is mutually agreed upon by all concerned parties.   

(c) An appeal stays all actions by the Planning Director seeking enforcement of 
or compliance with the decision appealed, unless the Planning Director 
certifies to the City Council that a stay would cause imminent peril to life or 
property, because of facts stated in the decision. In which case actions shall 
not be stayed except by order of the City Council or a court.   

(d) The City Council, by a concurring vote of two-thirds of all members, or 
the Planning and Zoning Commission, by a simple majority, whichever the 
case might be, may reverse, affirm (wholly or partly), remand back or modify 
the requirement, decision or determination and shall make any requirement, 
decision or determination that, in its opinion, ought to be made in order to 



remedy those situations noted in the appeal.  
4. Criteria.   

The purpose of the appeal procedure is to determine if the decision being appealed 
meets the requirements of this Zoning Ordinance.  The City Council or the Planning 
and Zoning Commission, when hearing an appeal, is limited to the following 
determinations:   
(a) The decision-maker made an error in reviewing whether a standard was 

met, by a misreading of the facts, plans, regulations or an error in judgment.   
(b) Where conflicting evidence exists, the appeal is limited to determining what 

evidence or testimony bears the greatest credibility.   
(c) The decision-maker made the decision on standards not contained in this or 

other City ordinances, regulations or state law; or a standard was applied 
more strictly or broadly than is appropriate to implement the City's 
Comprehensive Plan and this Zoning Ordinance.   

5. Judicial Review.   
The final decision on any application may be appealed to District Court, pursuant to 
N.M.S.A. 1978, Section 3-21-9, provided all administrative remedies have been 
exhausted.” 

In accordance with the appeal process stated above, the appellant filed his appeal within the 15-
day deadline. The Planning Department deemed that the appellant was aggrieved person and that 
the interest by the appellant was immediate and substantial. 
The City Council, by a concurring vote of two-thirds of all members, may reverse, affirm (wholly 
or partly), remand back or modify the requirement, decision or determination and shall make any 
requirement, decision or determination that, in its opinion, ought to be made in order to remedy 
those situations noted in the appeal.  
BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION: 
T    P&Z                          £   Lodgers Tax Board            £   Cemetery Board                      £      APPROVED 
£    Museum Board         £   San Jose Board                 £   Water Board                            T   DISSAPPROVED 
£    Library Board            £   N. Mesa Board                   £   __________ Committee 
 
Reviewed by  
City Administrator: ___________________________                Date: _____________________ 

ATTACHMENTS: Appellant’s letter, June 5, 2023, P&Z minutes, application materials. 

Olga Ramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe                                               07/06/2023



6/7/23, 3:36 PM City of Carlsbad Mail - Contest denial

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=82d3784e3b&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1767964164737263188&simpl=msg-f:17679641647372631… 1/1

Jeff Patterson <jepatterson@cityofcarlsbadnm.com>

Contest denial
3 messages

lunnyluc <lunnyluc@yahoo.com> Tue, Jun 6, 2023 at 8:33 AM
To: jepatterson@cityofcarlsbadnm.com

Good Morning, Mr. Patterson
     My name is Lucas McDonald and I would like to contest the denial of my variance for a 0' offset to the city council.
Thanks and please let me know when I will be scheduled for that meeting.
Have a blessed day
Lucas

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone

Jeff Patterson <jepatterson@cityofcarlsbadnm.com> Tue, Jun 6, 2023 at 9:31 AM
To: Trysha Ortiz <paortiz@cityofcarlsbadnm.com>

[Quoted text hidden]

Jeff Patterson <jepatterson@cityofcarlsbadnm.com> Wed, Jun 7, 2023 at 3:36 PM
To: lunnyluc <lunnyluc@yahoo.com>
Cc: Trysha Ortiz <paortiz@cityofcarlsbadnm.com>

Mr. McDonald, I received your email and your hard copy letter requesting to appeal the decision by the Planning and
Zoning Commission to deny your request for a Variance. I will schedule this item to appear before the City Council, and I
will inform you of the date of that hearing.

Thank you!
[Quoted text hidden]
--
Jeff Patterson, CFM
Director, Planning and Regulation Dept.
City of Carlsbad
575-885-1185
Ext. 2221





 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
 

City of Carlsbad 
Planning & Zoning Commission 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Monday, June 5, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Meeting Held in the Janell Whitlock Municipal Complex Council Chambers 
114 S. Halagueno St. 

 



 

 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF CARLSBAD 

CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO 
 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
Monday, June 5, 2023 at 5:00 PM 

Janell Whitlock Municipal Complex Council Chambers  
114 S. Halagueno Street 

GoToMeeting ID: 267-105-437 
US Phone: (571) 317-3122 Access Code: 267-105-437 

https://meet.goto.com/267105437 
 

1. Roll call of voting members and determination of quorum 

2. Approval of Agenda   

3. Approval of Minutes from the Meeting held May 1, 2023 

4. Remove from Table a consideration of approval Variance from Article IV, Section 56-
100(b) of the Carlsbad Zoning Ordinance requiring the installation of one (1) ADA 
Accessible Van parking space for the property located at 2404 W. Pierce St., zoned 
“C-2” Commercial 2 District. 

5. Consider a request for a Variance from Article IV, Section 56-100(b) of the Carlsbad 
Zoning Ordinance requiring the installation of one (1) ADA Accessible Van parking 
space for the property located at 2404 W. Pierce St., zoned “C-2” Commercial 2 
District. 

6. Remove from Table a consideration of approval Preliminary/Final Plat for the Robby 
and Judy Walterscheid Summary Subdivision, located at the intersection of Derrick 
Rd. and Grandi Rd., outside of the City Limits, creating nine new large tracts for 
development. 

 
7. Consider approval of a Preliminary/Final Plat for the Robby and Judy Walterscheid 

Summary Subdivision, located at the intersection of Derrick Rd. and Grandi Rd., 
outside of the City Limits, creating nine new large tracts for development. 

8. Consider approval of a Subdivision Plat for the Replat No. 2 of Boyd Dr Subdivision 
Line Adjustment located at 3201 Boyd Dr., creating four new tracts for development. 

9. Consider a recommendation to the City Council regarding a request for a change of 
zoning from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for 
approximately 18.5 acres, located at 3201 Boyd Dr., legally described as Tract 2A, 
Tract 2B1, Tract 2B2 & Tract 2B3, Replat No. 2 of Boyd Drive Subdivision Line 
Adjustment 

 



 

 

10. Consider a request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Home Occupation – 
Animal Care, to operate at the property located at 609 W. Fox St., zoned “C-1” 
Commercial 1 District 

 
11. Consider a request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow Employee Housing, to 

operate at the property located at 411 Carlgo St., zoned “C-2” Commercial 2 District 
 

12. Consider approval of a Variance to allow 6’ fence along the front setback as opposed 
to the maximum 4’ fence height for the property located at 104 N. Second St., zoned 
“R-1” Residential 1 District. 

13. Consider approval of a Variance to allow a 25’ front setback as opposed to the 
minimum 30’ front setback for the property located at 204 Ferndale St., zoned “R-1” 
Residential 1 District 

14. Consider approval of a Variance to allow 5’ rear setback as opposed to the minimum 
20’ rear setback for the property located at 1030 Malibu Way., zoned “R-R” Rural 
Residential District 

15. Consider approval of a Variance to allow 0’ side setback as opposed to the minimum 
5’ side setback for the property located at 1209 W. Thomas St., zoned “R-1” 
Residential 1 District 

16. Report regarding Summary Review Subdivisions 
 

17. Adjourn 

 

 

Agendas and Planning and Zoning Commission meeting minutes are available on the City web site: 
cityofcarlsbadnm.com  

 or may be viewed in the Office of the City Clerk or at the Carlsbad Public Library during normal and 
regular business hours 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING SCHEDULE 
                                • Regular meeting – Monday, July 10, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. 

If you require hearing interpreter, language interpreters or auxiliary aids in order to attend and participate 
in the above meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s office at (575) 887-1191 at least 48 hours 
prior to the scheduled meeting time. 



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD PLANNING & 
ZONING COMMISSION HELD IN THE JANELL WHITLOCK MUNICIPAL COMPLEX 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS,  
114 S. HALAGUENO STREET, JUNE 5, 2023 AT 5:00 P.M. 

VOTING MEMBERS PRESENT: 
CHAIRPERSZON 
COMMISSIONER 
COMMISSIONER 

JAMES MCCORMICK 
BRAD NESSER 
TRENT CORNUM
VALERIE�BRANSON  COMMISSIONER 

VOTING MEMBERS ABSENT: 
LINDA WILSON COMMISSIONER 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS PRESENT: 
JEFF PATTERSON PLANNING DIRECTOR 
TRYSHA ORTIZ DEPUTY PLANNING DIRECTOR 

SECRETARY PRESENT: 
JENNIFER CAMPOS PLANNING AND REGULATION  

DEPARTMENT EXECUTIVE SECRETARY 

OTHERS PRESENT: 
MELVIN PYEATT  413 HAMILTON 
JEFF O’BRAIN 1030 MALIBU WAY 
SONYA O’BRAIN  1030 MALIBU WAY 
RHONDA HARPER 410 N MESQUITE 
SKYLNN MCMINN 1601 W URAL DR. 
MANUEAL DUTCHOVER 104 N. 2ND ST. 
ROBBY WALTERSCHEID 5409 GRANDI RD. 
JUDY WALTERSCHEIF 5409 GRANDI RD. 
LUCAS MCDONALD 1209 W. THOMAS ST. 
MARIA CERVERA 204 FERNDALE 
RAQUEL KNIGHT 411 CARLGO  
MICHAEL A. BRADDOCK 411 CARLGO 
ROSA LINDA RAMIREZ 1212 W. THOMAS 
KACEY CORNUM  1081 MOUNUMENT CT. 
MEGHAN CRONIN STANTEC (via phone) 
ANDREA CARUSO AIR METHODS (via phone) 
CLAUDIA MAGALLANES  4008 JESSE JAMES CT. 

Time Stamps and headings below correspond to recording of meeting and the recording is hereby made a 
part of the official record. 

0:00:02 Start Recording [5:00:51 PM] 

0:00:08 1. Roll call of Voting Members and Determination of Quorum

Roll was called, confirming the presence of a quorum of commission members. The following members 
were present— Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Branson. Absent—Ms. Wilson. 



 

 

 
0:00:25 2. Approval of Agenda  
 
Mr. Cornum made a motion to approve the Agenda; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as 
follows: Yes-- Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Branson. No—None. Absent—Ms. 
Wilson. Abstained—None. The motion carried. 
 
0:00:55 3. Approval of Minutes from the Meeting held May 1, 2023 
 
Ms. Branson made a motion to approve the Minutes from the regular meeting held on May 1, 2023; Mr. 
Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes-- Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser, Mr. 
Cornum, Ms. Branson. No—None. Absent—Ms. Wilson. Abstained—None. The motion carried. 
 
0:01:35  4. Remove from Table a consideration of approval from Article IV, Section 56-
100(b) of the Carlsbad Zoning Ordinance requiring the installation of one (1) ADA Accessible Van 
Parking space for the property located at 2404 W. Pierce St., zoned “C-2” Commercial 2 District. 
 
Mr. Nesser made a motion to remove from table; Mr. Cornum seconded the motion. The vote was as 
follows: Yes-- Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Branson. No—None. Absent—Ms. 
Wilson.  Abstained—None. The motion carried. 
 
0:02:25  5. Consider a request for a Variance from Article IV, Section 56-100(b) of the 
Carlsbad Zoning Ordinance requiring the installation of one (1) ADA Accessible Van parking space 
for the property located at 2404 W. Pierce St., zoned “C-2” Commercial 2 District. 
 
The applicants, Andrea Caruso from Air Methods and Meghan Cronin from Stantec, are in attendance 
via phone.  Mr. Patterson explains that this request is to waive the requirement to install an ADA 
compliant, van accessible parking space to service the new Air Methods facility that will be built at 2404 
W. Pierce St. The applicant explains in their application that the new facility is intended for Air Methods 
employees only, and will not serve customers or the public. Air Methods emergency responders will 
occupy this new building, and due to the nature of their work, all employees occupying this facility will 
be able-bodied. As such, Air Methods will not need the ADA compliant parking to serve the new 
business.  Also, the parking that they will be utilizing is existing parking owned by Carlsbad Medical 
Center, and the slope of the parking surface is too severe to meet ADA requirements. They would have to 
rebuild the parking lot to meet this requirements, so they are requesting this variance.  Ms. Caruso 
explains that they operate the emergency medical flights that service Carlsbad Medical Center and what 
they are doing is putting in a modular trailer at the subject site to accommodate their on shift employees.  
Mr. McCormick asked if their current employees are not handicap and if they do not need the ADA 
accessible parking.  Ms. Caruso said yes, so that only people that are able to get in and out of the 
helicopter will be staying in the modular structure.  Mr. Patterson said this proposed project will be 
constructed under a lease agreement for the parcel between Air Methods and Carlsbad Medical Center.  
The slope of the existing parking spaces to the northwest are the only spaces which are ADA complaint.  
The slope of the parking area to the south is too great to allow ADA parking.  Planning Department 
recommends approval.  Ms. Cronin stated that the building that’s being proposed is going to sit on the 
area where there will be slight slope. It will be a modular building and sitting above the ground, and a 
ramp and walkways will be installed.  They will not have any curb cuts added to the exiting curb, but the 
walkway will be accessible per code. They just can’t establish any of the parking spaces as accessible 
because the slope is too steep to meet code.  Floor opened for public comment. There was none. 
 
Mr. Cornum made a motion for approval; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: 
Yes-- Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Branson. No—None. Absent—Ms. Wilson.  
Abstained—None. The motion carried. 
 



 

 

0:14:35  6. Remove from Table a consideration of approval Prelinimary/Final Plat for 
the Robby and Judy Walterscheid Summary Subdivision, located at the intersection of Derrick Rd. 
and Grandi Rd., outside of the City Limits, creating nine new large tracts for development. 
 
Mr. Nesser made a motion to remove from table; Mr. Cornum seconded the motion. The vote was as 
follows: Yes-- Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Branson. No—None. Absent—Ms. 
Wilson.  Abstained—None. The motion carried. 
 
0:15:19  7. Consider approval of a Preliminary/Final Plat for the Robby and Judy 
Walterscheid Summary Subdivision, located at the intersection of Derrick Rd. and Grandi Rd., 
outside of the City Limits, creating nine new large tracts for development.  
 
Melvin Pyeatt, the surveyor for the landowners, comes to podium. Mr. Patterson explains this request is 
for the approval of a preliminary and final plat that will split the current +/- 97.5 acre property owned by 
Robby & Judy Walterscheid into nine separate large tracts. The attached subdivision plat shows the 
access that will be provided off of Grandi Rd. for Lots 1&2, and the access that will be provided off of 
Derrick Rd. for Lots 3-9. The access off of Derrick Rd. will need to cross over an irrigation ditch, so the 
applicants are placing a crossing into Lot 9, then providing a 60’ access easement across Lots 3-9 from 
this one crossing. There will be a turnaround installed at the west end of this access easement at Lot 3. For 
Lots 1&2, the access from Grandi Rd. will enter Lot 1 and run east through a 60’ access easement to Lot 
2. The applicants have not stated how water will be provided to these properties. All lots will be served by 
in ground septic systems. The City’s Planning Office has consulted with Eddy County officials to discuss 
the access issues that are present for this property. It was suggested by the Eddy Co. Planner and the 
City’s Planning office that an additional crossing along Derrick Rd. be installed to provide a second 
means of access in case of emergency.  Planning Department recommends approval.  Mr. McCormick 
asked if they are aware of the city’s conditions.  Mr. Pyeatt said yes, and for the water issue they’re 
going to drill water wells.  Mr. Cornum asked Mr. Pyeatt if they were going to be shared or individual 
wells for the lots.  Mr. Pyeatt responded individual wells per lot.  Floor opened for public comment.  
There was none. 
 
Mr. Nesser made a motion for approval with the recommendations from the City for an additional 
crossing along Derrick Rd. be installed to provide a second means of access in case of 
emergency; Mr. Cornum seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes-- Mr. McCormick, Mr. 
Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Branson. No— None. Absent—Ms. Wilson. Abstained—None. The motion 
carried. 
 
0:21:29  8. Consider approval of a Subdivision Plat for the Replat No. 2 of Boyd Dr. 
Subdivision Line Adjustment located at 3201 Boyd Dr., creating four new tracts for development.  
 
Kacey Cornum, representing Valley Transportation properties, comes to the podium. Mr. Patterson 
explains this request is for a Subdivision Plat for the Replat No. 2 of Boyd Drive Subdivision Line 
Adjustment, located at 3201 Boyd Drive.  This request is for the approval of a subdivision plat that will 
split the current +/- 18.5 acre property owned by Valley Transportation, LLC into four separate large 
tracts. The attached subdivision plat shows that the access will be provided off of W. Rose St for Tracts 
2B1, 2B2 & 2B3, and the access that will be provided off of Boyd Dr. for Tract 2A.  There are water 
utilities along Rose Street that will service these lots. City sewer service in that area is yet to be 
determined. There will need to be in ground septic for the new lots unless the property can extend City 
sewer to these properties.  Right now the property owner is seeking a zone change for the subject property 
from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District which will be heard at City 
Council at a later date.  Mr. Cornum asked to be recused for this item.  Floor opened for public 
comment.  There was none. 
 



 

 

Mr. Nesser made a motion for approval; Ms. Branson seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: 
Yes-- Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser, Ms. Branson. No—None. Absent—Ms. Wilson.  Abstained— Mr. 
Cornum. None. The motion carried. 
 
 
 
0:25:25  9. Consider a recommendation to the City Council regarding a request for a 
change of zoning from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for 
approximately 18.5 acres, located at 3201 Boyd Dr., legally described as Tract 2A, Tract 2B1, Tract 
2B2 & Tract 2B3, Replat No. 2 of Boyd Drive Subdivision Line Adjustment. 
 
Kacey Cornum is representing Valley Transportation properties, comes to the podium.  Mr. Patterson 
explains this request for a change of zoning from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” Commercial 2 
District for approximately 18.5 acres, located at 3201 Boyd Dr., legally described as Tract 2A, Tract 2B1, 
Tract 2B2 & Tract 2B3, Replat No. 2 of Boyd Drive Subdivision Line Adjustment.  The properties to the 
east & west are zoned “R-R” Rural Residential District; the properties to the north & south are zoned “C-
2” Commercial 2 District. This will not create a spot zone.  Floor opened for public comment.  There was 
none. 
 
Mr. Nesser made a motion for approval; Ms. Branson seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: 
Yes-- Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser, Ms. Branson. No—None. Absent—Ms. Wilson.  Abstained— Mr. 
Cornum. None. The motion carried. 
 
Mr. Patterson said this item will be heard at City Council on July 25, 2023 
 
0:28:29  10. Consider a request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Home 
Occupation-Animal Care, to operate at the property located at 609 W. Fox St., zoned “C-1” 
Commercial 1 District. 
 
The applicant, Skylnn McMinn, comes to the podium. Mr. Patterson explains this request is for a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow an Animal Care - Pet Salon, to operate at the property located at 609 W. 
Fox St., a property zoned “C-1” Commercial 1 District, in accordance with Sections 56-42, Table 3, of the 
City of Carlsbad Zoning Ordinance. The property is currently zoned “R-2” Residential 2 District, 
however, the applicant has submitted a request to change the zoning to “C-1” Commercial 1 District. The 
zone change request was heard by the Planning and Zoning Commission at the May 1, 2023, Commission 
meeting, and the Commission voted to recommend approval of this request to the City Council. The 
Council is scheduled to hear the zone change request at the June 13, 2023, Council meeting.  The 
applicant has stated that their customers will be dropping off and picking up their pets daily. Sec. 56- 
42(c) states that no outdoor overnight boarding of animals is allowed. The Planning Department 
recommends approval.  Ms. McMinn said she’s only going to be grooming dogs at this location, and 
there will be there’s no set schedule. She’s going to be hiring a family friend to help her bathe the dogs.  It 
will be open Monday through Friday. Her grandmother is the owner of the property.  There will not be 
any dogs outside. Customers will just be dropping off and picking them up the animals daily.  Mr. 
Patterson said that the Zone Change would have to be successful in order for the Conditional Use to be 
valid.  Floor opened for public comment.  There was none.  Mr. Nesser asked how many parking spaces 
are going to be on Fox Street.  Ms. Harper said they have already taken out room for four renters from 
there and they could possibly fit up to ten spaces.    
   
Mr. Nesser made a motion for approval the Conditional Use permit depending on approval of the zoning 
change request from City Council; Mr. Cornum seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes-- 
Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Branson. No—None. Absent—Ms. Wilson.  
Abstained—None. The motion carried 
 



 

 

0:34:24  11. Consider a request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow Employee Housing 
to operate at the property located at 411 Carlgo St., zoned “C-2” Commercial 2 District.  
 
The applicant, Raquel Knight, comes to the podium. Mr. Patterson explains this is a request for a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow the installation of work-force housing, termed Employee Housing, to be 
located at 411 Carlgo St., zoned “C-2” Commercial 2 District. The applicant has placed two (2) “Legacy 
Housing” manufactured homes at this site and will need to work with the appropriate departments 
regarding compliance and utilities of the two structures.  The Planning and Zoning Commission can 
require additional improvements to the site as conditions of approval, if desired. Conditional Use Permits 
are not transferable and do not run with the land. Conditional Use Permits expire upon the sale, transfer, 
or lease of the property to a new owner or tenant.  The Planning Department, based on department 
recommendations and analysis, recommends approval of Employee Housing with the following 
conditions: · Work with the Building Department by providing information on the modular units · 
Provide a unit and occupancy count.  Ms. Knight explains that they have a trucking company and would 
like to house their employees at this site because most of them do not live in Carlsbad.  Mr. McCormick 
asked if the structures were already there.  Ms. Knight answered yes. Mr. Patterson said that the 
Building Department was asking for more information about the structures because the Inspectors were 
not consulted before the buildings were placed.  Ms. Branson asked about the regulations on the side and 
rear setbacks.  Mr. Patterson answered that this property, being zoned “C-2” Commercial 2 District, 
would have a required 5’ side and 10’ rear setback. Mr. Cornum asked if has there been any surveyor to 
check to see if the structures are encroaching on the setbacks.  Mr. Cornum referenced the maps in the 
packet and asked if the buildings indicated were the buildings being utilized.  Ms. Knight said yes.  Mr. 
Cornum asked if they were tied to City Utilities.  Ms. Knight said she thought one of the buildings was 
and the other was not.  Ms. Branson said the building on east side of the property is looks to be within 
the 5’ side setback and the building on the south side looks to be within the 10’ rear setback.  Mr. 
Cornum asked if the applicant would need a Variance request approved in order for the Commission to 
approve the Conditional Use Permit.  Mr. Patterson said that the applicant would need an approved 
Variance for encroaching into the setbacks, or the buildings need to be moved out of the setbacks, one or 
the other.  Mr. Cornum asked how many spaces are available for people to stay.  Ms. Knight said 
there’s five rooms per trailer, with each room having two beds, so there would be ten spaces per building.  
Ms. Branson asked Mr. Patterson if he knew what the current occupancy on all man camps within the 
City was as of now.  Mr. Patterson said he doesn’t have an exact number but it’s possibly 1100 or 1200 
units between modular man camps and RV parks.  Ms. Branson asked if there’s any parking at the 
subject site.  Ms. Knight said it’s in the middle of the property.  Mr. McCormick explains to Ms. 
Knight that the buildings are not in compliance with the setbacks and in order for them to approve this 
Conditional Use she would need to get a Variance to go along with this request.   
 
Mr. Cornum asked Ms. Knight why the business has trucks that are parked in the ROW for National 
Parks Hwy. Those trucks should be parked towards the back of the property.  Ms. Knight said she didn’t 
know.  Mr. Nesser addressed Mr. Cornum that the NMDOT normally enforces parking on the right of 
way.  Floor opened for public comment.  There was none.    
 
Ms. Branson made a motion for denial; Mr. Cornum seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: 
Yes—Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Branson. No— None. Absent— Ms. Wilson. 
Abstained—None. The motion for denial carried. 
 
0:58:22  12. Consider approval of a Variance to allow 6’ fence along the front setback as 
opposed to the maximum 4’ fence height for the property located at 104 N Second St., zoned “R-1” 
Residential 1 District.  
 
The applicant, Manuela Dutchover, comes to the podium.  Mr. Patterson explains this request is for a 
Variance from Ord. 56-70(d)(5)(c) to allow a 6’ fence along the front property line as opposed to the 
maximum 4’ fence height for the property located at 104 N. Second St., zoned “R-1” Residential 1 
District. The applicant has constructed a solid 6’ fence along the front and side property lines. A permit 



 

 

was not applied for or issued. Based on review of the application materials and other staff comments, the 
Planning Dept. recommends approval of this request with the following condition: · The applicant shall 
taper the fence down to 4’ beginning 10’ from the front property line.  Ms. Dutchover said that she had a 
contractor from Lowe’s install the fence. She asked the contractor if he was sure he could install it and 
she didn’t get the proper permits for it. It’s a wooden fence and she lives alone and doesn’t trust anyone 
walking through her neighborhood.  Mr. Cornum asked Ms. Dutchover if she’s willing to comply with 
what the city has requested.  Ms. Dutchover said she really doesn’t want to but if she has to she will 
comply.  Ms. Ortiz explained that the property to the south of Ms. Dutchover is zoned “C-2” as to where 
Ms. Dutchover is zoned “R-1”. When commercial property abuts residential, the commercial property is 
required to put up a solid 6’ fence. Also, does the 6’ fence go all the way to the property line on their rear 
or does it stop.  Ms. Dutchover said it stops.  Ms. Branson said she’s not saying that the metal fence is a 
problem of Ms. Dutchover because it’s the neighbor’s backyard fence that doesn’t need to come down.  
Ms. Ortiz said correct.  Mr. Cornum said it would be the northwest corner and front of her property that 
would have to be tapered down.  Mr. McCormick said yes.  Floor opened for public comment.  There 
was none.    
 
Mr. Cornum made a motion for approval; Ms. Branson seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: 
Yes-- Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Branson. No— None. Absent—Ms. Wilson. 
Abstained—None. The motion carried. 
 
1:18:37  13. Consider approval of a Variance to allow a 25’ front setback as opposed to 
the minimum 30’ front setback for the property located at 204 Ferndale St., zoned “R-1” 
Residential 1 District. 
 
The applicants, Maria Cervera and Claudia Magallanes, come to the podium.  Ms. Ortiz explained the 
applicant has submitted a request to allow a 25’ front setback as opposed to the minimum 30’ front 
setback for the property located at 204 Ferndale St. The applicant has provided a site plan for the 
proposed new construction. The applicant would like to build a covered front porch that will encroach 6’ 
into the front setback. The home currently sits 31’ from the front parcel line, which would result in a 25’ 
front setback. Planning Department recommends approval.  Ms. Magallanes said they want it to be 6’ out 
like a patio cover and see through all the way around.  Mr. McCormick asked if it’s going to be attached 
to the house.  Mr. Cornum asked if it’s going to have a metal roof.  Ms. Magallanes said they haven’t 
decided on metal or shingle. Depending on the outcome of tonight’s meeting, if we get approved then we 
can get prices and see what they decide and work with the finish of the house.  Floor opened for public 
comment.  There was none.    
 
Mr. Nesser made a motion for approval; Mr. Cornum seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: 
Yes-- Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Branson. No— None. Absent—Ms. Wilson. 
Abstained—None. The motion carried. 
 
1:23:30  14. Consider approval of a Variance to allow 5’ rear setback as opposed to the 
minimum 20’ rear setback for the property located at 1030 Malibu Way., zoned “R-R” Rural 
Residential District.  
 
The applicant Jeff O’Brain, comes to the podium.  Mr. Patterson explains this is a request for Variance 
from Ord. 56-90(b) to allow a 5’ rear setback as opposed to the minimum 20’ rear setback for the property 
located at 1030 Malibu Way., zoned “R-R” Rural Residential District. The restrictions filed with the plat 
call for a 20’ rear setback and a 5’ side setback for the subdivision. The applicant has provided a 
preliminary site map showing the proposed structure location on the property. He would like to construct 
a 30’ x 60’ shop on the property. Based on review of the application materials and other staff comments, 
the Planning Dept. recommends approval of this request with the following recommendation: · The 
applicant be allowed a 10’ rear setback as opposed to 5’.  Mr. O’Brain said he would like to build a 30’ x 
60’ shop there and since there is an existing fence in the middle of his back yard and sprinkler systems, he 
would like to build the new structure within the rear setback.  There’s a cross metal fence that the 



 

 

previous owners had to keep the children and the dogs separated, and in order for him to not move the 
sprinkler system and the fence, he wants to go to toward the back fence to and leave 5’.  Mr. O’Brain 
asked what would be the rationale of the 10’ instead of the 5’, what’s the purpose.  Mr. Patterson said 
when the city staff reviews these applications, emergency services looks closely at the reductions on the 
setbacks. Emergency Services recommended the 10’ rear setback compromise.  Floor opened for public 
comment.  There was none.    
 
Mr. Nesser made a motion for approval for a 7.5’ variance; no second of the motion was made. 
The motion for a 7.5’ rear setback variance died due to lack of a second motion. 
 
Mr. Cornum made a motion for approval for a 5’ variance; Ms. Branson seconded the motion. The vote 
was as follows: Yes-- Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Branson. No— None. 
Absent—Ms. Wilson. Abstained—None. The motion carried. 
 
1:34:10  15. Consider approval of a Variance to allow 0’ side setback as opposed to the 
minimum 5’ side setback for the property located at 1209 W. Thomas St., zoned “R-1” Residential 
1 District. 
 
The applicant, Lucas McDonald, comes to the podium.  Mr. Patterson explains this request is for a 
Variance from Ord. 56-90(b) to allow a 0’ side setback as opposed to the minimum 5’ side setback for the 
property located at 1209 W. Thomas St., zoned “R-1” Residential 1 District.  The applicant would like to 
place a carport over the existing driveway on the east side of the property.  Based on review of the 
application materials and other staff comments, the Planning Dept. recommends denial of this request.  
Mr. McDonald said he’s just trying to protect his vehicles from the weather.  Also, he wants to give his 
daughter a place to ride her bike in the shade.  It’s going to be a metal carport bolted to the ground.  Mr. 
McCormick asked if it was enclosed.  Mr. McDonald said it’s just a roof.  Mr. Nesser asked how wide 
the driveway is.  Mr. McDonald said it’s about 19’ 8” and it’s a 20 x 30 x 9 carport.  Ms. Ramirez said 
she’s Luke’s neighbor directly across the street, and she has about 5 windows that are 5 ½’ to 6’ in her 
living room so she sees directly to his house.  She doesn’t want to wake up every morning and see this 
eyesore in her neighborhood and especially looking out her windows.  They live on West Thomas St., and 
it’s a block from Riverside Dr. and nobody in that neighborhood has a carport extending out.  She wants 
to talk about the ordinance. They put in ordinances to protect their living areas, because one of the biggest 
investments in life is their property and that being second to their children.  She wants to talk about the 
neighborhood. They’ve had many oilfield workers residing in her neighborhood that drive large trucks.  
They have a lot of trucks parked along the street after 5:00 PM and the children often run between 
vehicles into the street. Her concern is not only the eyesore, it’s also the lack of visibility when they ride 
their bike. Also, the noise that it will bring to the area with the metal roof.  Ms. Ramirez said when Mr. 
McDonald came to the board before to have a business out of his house he stated that he would put in a 
circular driveway for his customer’s to park on his driveway and not on the street. That never happened.  
The reality is that whatever is decided is what they are to live with, but ordinances in the city are made to 
be followed and it’s for the protection for everyone. She hopes that the item is denied.  Mr. McDonald 
said if he puts the carport in the middle of his driveway, he wouldn’t need to be here, so he has the right 
to place a carport in front. He’s only asking for it to be on his property line. He understands that there’s 
not carport in the neighborhood.  Mr. Cornum asked to make sure to check on the 30’ setback and 
whether the carport would encroach on the street ROW.  Mr. Patterson said it’s close to 30’ but it’s hard 
to be accurate when measuring in the GIS.  Ms. Ramirez said some of the neighbors have their carports 
behind their house.  Mr. Cornum asked if he had alley access.  Mr. McDonald said no and he has a 6’ 
cinder block fence all the way around his house.  Mr. Nesser asked if he could move it over and add to 
the width to the driveway.  Mr. McDonald said no, it would then be encroaching into his house and his 
front yard. 
 
Mr. Cornum made a motion for denial for the zero setback; Ms. Branson seconded the motion. The vote 
was as follows: Yes-- Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Branson. No— None. 
Absent—Ms. Wilson. Abstained—None. The motion for denial carried. 



 

 

 
Mr. McCormick said that this decision could be appealed to the City Council.  Mr. Patterson said that 
he would need a letter email from Mr. McDonald delivered to his office within 15 days of today’s date. 
An appeal then can be scheduled to go before City Council.   
 
1:51:25  16. Report regarding Summary Review Subdivisions 
 
Mr. Patterson gave a report on the Summary Reviews. Nothing unusual was noted.  
 
1:54:35  17. Adjourn 
 
Ms. Wilson made a motion to Adjourn; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes--
Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No— None. Absent—Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. 
Abstained—None. The motion carried. 
 
The meeting was adjourned. 
 
1:55:24 Stop Recording [6:55:24 PM] 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________  ______________ 
      Chairman                     Date  

 























CITY OF CARLSBAD
AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM

DEPARTMENT:
Executive
SUBJECT:

BY: Wendy Austin-Deputy City
Administrator

DATE:
July 3, 2023

Resolution increasing the contribution, from the City of Carlsbad (City), to the New Mexico Public Employees
Retirement Association (PERA) for Carlsbad Police Officers Association (CPOA) union members participating in
Municipal General Plan 3
SYNOPSIS, HISTORY and IMPACT (SAFETY AND WELFARE/FINANCIAL/PERSONNEL/INFRASTRUCTURE/ETC.):

State Statute, NMSA 1978, Section 10-11-5, authorizes affiliated public employers of PERA to make contributions of up¬
to seventy-five percent (75%) of its employees' member contributions.

In an effort to recruit, hire, and retain law enforcement personnel, the City is recommending a fifty-seven, point
twenty-seven percent (57.27%) pick-up for CPOA union members participating in Municipal General Plan 3. This
increase is summarized below:

employee City Total
Proposed 7.00% 19.45% 26.45%
Current 12.65% 12.80% 25.45%
Increase (Decrease) (5.65%) 6.65% 1.00%

CPOA union members participating in Municipal General Plan 3, include: Animal Control Officers, Animal Control
Supervisors, Community Services Officers, Evidence Clerks, Record Clerks, Record Clerk Supervisors,
Telecommunicators, and Telecommunicator Supervisors.

If the resolution is approved by the Carlsbad City Council, the resolution will then go before the PERA Board meeting to
be held in August 2023. If the PERA Board approves the contribution adjustments, the updated contributions will be
implemented the first full pay-period in September 2023.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:
Approve the resolution to increase the City's contribution for CPOA union members participating in Municipal General
Plan 3
BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION:

Lodgers Tax Board

Library Board

I I
San Jose Board
N. Mesa Board

Cemetery Board
Water Board.
Budget Committee

P&Z
Museum Board

APPROVED
DISSAPPROVED

Reviewed by:
City Administrator: Date:

COUNCIL MEETING DATE: July 11, 2023

ATTACHMENTS:

Resolution Authorizing 55.27% Pick-up of PERA Member Contributions

Olga Ramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe                                                             07/06/2023



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 55.27% PICK-UP

OF PERA MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 10-1 1-5, authorizes affiliated public employers to be responsible for
making contributions of up to seventy-five percent of its employees’ member contributions to the Public Employees

Retirement Association (PERA) under certain conditions;

WHEREAS, the City of Carlsbad authorizes an increased employer pick-up for the Carlsbad Police

Officers Association (CPOA) union members participating in the Municipal General Coverage Plan 3 in an ongoing

effort to recruit, hire and retain law enforcement personnel;

WHEREAS, the City' of Carlsbad desires to make fifty five point twenty seven percent (55.27%) of

employee contributions for its municipal employees covered under the PERA Municipal General Coverage Plan 3

that are a part of the Carlsbad Police Officers Association (CPOA) Union;

WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978. Section 10-1 1-5, this Resolution is irrevocable (subject to the

exceptions set forth in Section 10-11-5) and shall apply to all City of Carlsbad CPOA union employees within the

PERA Municipal General Coverage Plan 3;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Carlsbad, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 10-11-5,

hereby elects to be responsible for making contributions of fifty five point twenty seven percent (55.27%) of

employees’ member contributions to the Public Employees Retirement Association for its municipal employees that

arc a part of the CPOA union under the PERA Municipal General Coverage Plan 3. To take effect the first full pay
period in September of 2023.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD

THIS DAY OF , 2023.

CITY OF CARLSBAD

By; Dale Janway, Mayor
ATTEST:

Nadine Mireles, City Clerk

Olga Ramirez
Typewriter
32



CITY OF CARLSBAD
AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM

COUNCIL MEETING DATE: July 11, 2023
DEPARTMENT:
Executive
SUBJECT:

BY: Wendy Austin-Deputy City
Administrator

DATE:
July 3, 2023

Resolution increasing the contribution, from the City of Carlsbad (City), to the New Mexico Public Employees
Retirement Association (PERA) for Municipal Police Plan 5
SYNOPSIS, HISTORY and IMPACT (SAFETY AND WELFARE/FINANCIAL/PERSONNEL/INFRASTRUCTURE/ETC.):

State Statute, NMSA 1978, Section 10-11-5, authorizes affiliated public employers of PERA to make contributions of up¬
to seventy-five percent (75%) of its employees' member contributions.

In an effort to recruit, hire, and retain law enforcement officers, the City is recommending a sixty-two, point seventy¬
seven percent (62.77%) pick-up for employees in PERA Municipal Police Coverage Plan 5. This increase is summarized
below:

Employee City Total
Proposed 7.00% 31.95% 38.95%
Current 15.80% 21.15% 37.95%
Increase (Decrease) (8.80%) 10.80% 1.00%

The employees in PERA Municipal Police Coverage Plan 5, include: The Police Chief, the Assistant Police Chief,
Captains, Lieutenants, Corporals, Detectives, Evidence Technicians, Patrolman, and Sergeants.

If the resolution is approved by the Carlsbad City Council, the resolution will then go before the PERA Board meeting to
be held in August 2023. If the PERA Board approves the contribution adjustments, the updated contributions will be
implemented the first full pay-period in September 2023.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:
Approvethe resolution to increase the City's contribution for employees in PERA Municipal Police Plan 5
BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION:

P&Z
Museum Board
Library Board

Lodgers Tax Board
San Jose Board
N. Mesa Board

Cemetery Board
Water Board,
Budget Committee

APPROVED
DISSAPPROVED

Reviewed by:
City Administrator: Date:

ATTACHMENTS:

Resolution Authorizing 62.77% Pick-up of PERA Member Contributions

Olga Ramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe                                                            07/06/2023



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 62.77% PICK-UP

OF PER/\ MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 10-11-5, authorizes affiliated public employers to be responsible for

making contributions of up to seventy-five percent of its employees’ member contributions to the Public Employees

Retirement Association (PERA) under certain conditions;

WHEREAS, the City of Carlsbad authorizes an increased employer pick-up for the employees covered

under the Municipal Police Coverage Plan 5 in an ongoing effort to recruit, hire and retain law enforcement officers;

WHEREAS, the City of Carlsbad desires to make sixty two point seventy seven percent (62.77%) of

employee contributions for its municipal employees covered under the PERA Municipal Police Coverage Plan 5;

WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978. Section 10-1 1-5, this Resolution is irrevocable (subject to the

exceptions set forth in Section 10-11-5) and shall apply to all City of Carlsbad employees covered under the PERA

Municipal Police Coverage Plan 5;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Carlsbad, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 10-11-5,

hereby elects to be responsible for making contributions of sixty two point seventy seven percent (62.77%) of

employees' member contributions to the Public Employees Retirement Association for its municipal employees that

are covered under the PERA Municipal Police Coverage Plan 5. To take effect the first full pay period in September

of 2023.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD

THIS DAY OF , 2023.

CITY OF CARLSBAD

By: Dale Janway, Mayor

ATTEST:

Nadine Mireles, City Clerk

Olga Ramirez
Typewriter
33



CITY OF CARLSBAD

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM

Council Meeting Date: July 11, 2023

BACKGROUND, ANALYSIS AND IMPACT: (Safety and Welfare/Financial/Personnel/Infrastructure/etc.)

DEPARTMENT Legal BY: Denise Madrid Boyea <^> DATE: June 30, 2023

SUBJECT:
Proposed Resolution requiring the removal of the ruins, rubbish, wreckage, debris or weeds at 2506
Primrose.

The property commonly known as 2506 Primrose is in a residential neighborhood near the intersection
of Canal St. and Center St. There appears is no residence on the property but an old mobile home burned on this
property in 2019 and a shed on the property appears to be occupied. There is an enormous amount of junk,
trash, debris and rubble.

The Eddy County Assessor’s Office lists Norwest Bank NM as owning or having an interest in the
property The Assessor's records lists Norwest Bank NM’s address as Albert Lopez K of S, 2306 Bonita St.,
Carlsbad, NM 88220

The property appears to be occupied by a male who is living in a shed and van. Code enforcement has
been to the property. A verbal warning was given on 4/17/23. A Notice of Violation was mailed by certified mail
to the owner on 5/8/23 at the address listed in the Assessor's records and on 6/6/23 to the physical address.
Code enforcement has spoken to occupants in person regarding complaints and the code violations. The property
has been inspected by the City Code Enforcement Office and the Fire Marshal. They found that the property
remains out of compliance with applicable codes. The Fire Marshal found that the property presents an extreme
fire hazard for responding firefighters and emergency personnel and recommends the property be cleaned and
the weeds, trash and debris be removed.

A resolution has been prepared which, if adopted, would require the property owner to remove ail ruins,
rubbish, wreckage, debris or weeds from the property within thirty days of the service of the resolution.

On June 23, 2023, a certified letter was sent to Norwest Bank NM at an incorrect address and another
letter was mailed to the correct address on June 30, 2023 to the address on the records of the County, which
invited them to attend the meeting and speak with Council about the property.

*

EPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION
Adopt the proposed resolution.

BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION N/A

P&Z Lodgers Tax Board Cemetery Board }□ approved

Museum Board San Jose Board Water Board inmcoDonumj l—l r nW CU

Library Board North Mesa Board Committee

Reviewed by:
City Administrator Date:

ATTACHMENT(S):
Proposed Resolution with Attachments
Photographs
Letter to Norwest Bank NM- Albert Lopez K of S, on June 23, 2023 & June 30, 2023

Olga Ramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe                                                                       07/06/2023



1�
�

RESOLUTION�NO.�2023-____�
�
� � � A� RESOLUTION� FINDING� 2506� PRIMROSE�

STREET� TO� BE� COVERED� WITH� RUINS,�
RUBBISH,� WRECKAGE,� DEBRIS,� AND/OR�
WEEDS�AND�REQUIRING�THE�REMOVAL�OF�
THE� RUINS,� RUBBISH,� WRECKAGE,�
DEBRIS,�AND/OR�WEEDS�

�
�
�
� WHEREAS,� the� records� of� the� Eddy� County� Assessor's� Office� show�Norwest�
Bank�NM�c/o�Albert�Lopez� to�be�the�owners�of�or� to�have�an� interest� in� the�property�
commonly�known�as�2506�Primrose�Street,�Carlsbad,�Eddy�County,�New�Mexico,�and�
more�particularly�described�as:�
�

Subd:�COUNTRYSIDE�ESTATES�PHASE�1�Lot:�3�Block:�1�
�

hereinafter�referred�to�as�“Property”,�and�
�
� WHEREAS,�the�Property�has�been�inspected�by�the�Carlsbad�Code�Enforcement�
Officer�and�the�City�Fire�Chief;�and�
�
� WHEREAS,� the� Code� Enforcement� Officer� and� the� Fire� Chief� found� that� the�
Property�has�not�been�adequately�maintained;�and�
�
� WHEREAS,� the�Property� contains� a� large� amount� of� ruins,� rubbish,�wreckage,�
and/or�debris,�and�some�weeds;�and�
�
� WHEREAS,�the�Property�is�in�an�unsafe�condition�and�constitutes�a�hazard�to�the�
surrounding�properties,�residents�and�passersby;�and�
�
� WHEREAS,�the�Code�Enforcement�Officer�found�that�the�specific�violations,�under�
Code�of�Ordinances�of�the�City�of�Carlsbad,�at�the�Property�include,�but�are�not�limited�to�
those�listed�on�the�attached�Exhibit�“A”;�and�
�
� WHEREAS,� the�City� Fire� Chief� has� inspected� the� Property� and� found� that� the�
specific�violations�at�the�Property�under�Fire�Code�include,�but�are�not�limited�to�those�
listed�on�the�attached�Exhibit�“B”;�and�
�
� WHEREAS,�the�Property�and�all�ruins,�rubbish,�wreckage,�debris,�and�weeds�are�
a�menace�to�the�public�comfort,�health,�peace,�and�safety�and�require�removal�forthwith;�
�
� NOW�THEREFORE,� BE� IT� RESOLVED� by� the�Governing� Body� of� the�City� of�
Carlsbad,�Eddy�County,�New�Mexico�that:�
�

Olga Ramirez
Typewriter
34



2�
�

� 1.� A�copy�of�this�Resolution�shall�be�served�on�the�record�owner,�as�shown�by�
the� real� estate� records� of� the� County� Clerk,� occupants,� or� agents� in� charge� of� the�
Property.��Such�service�shall�be�in�person�if�such�a�person�can�be�found�within�the�City�
of�Carlsbad,�New�Mexico�after�a�reasonable�search.�
�
� 2.� If�a�record�owner,�occupant,�or�agent�in�charge�of�the�Property�cannot�be�
located�within�the�City�of�Carlsbad,�New�Mexico,�notice�shall�be�by�posting�at�the�Property�
and�by�publishing�this�Resolution�one�time�in�a�newspaper�in�general�circulation�in�the�
City�of�Carlsbad.�
�
� 3.� Within� ten� days� of� either� the� receipt� of� a� copy� of� this� Resolution� or� the�
posting�and�publishing�of�this�Resolution,�the�owner,�occupant,�or�agent�in�charge�of�the�
Property�shall�either:�

A.��Commence�removing�all�ruins,�rubbish,�wreckage,�debris,�and�weeds�from�the�
premises;�or�
B.��File�a�written�objection�with�the�Carlsbad�Municipal�Clerk�at�101�N.�Halagueno,�
Carlsbad,�New�Mexico�88220�and�request�a�hearing�before�the�City�Council.�

� �
� 4.� If�a�written�objection�is�filed�as�required,�the�City�Council�shall�proceed�as�
directed� by� Chapter� 22,� Article� II� of� the� Code� of� Ordinances,� City� of� Carlsbad,� New�
Mexico.���
�
� 5.� The�removal�of�the�ruins,�rubbish,�wreckage,�debris,�and�weeds�shall:�
� � A.� Begin�immediately;�
� � B.� Proceed�properly�and�with�diligence;�and�
� � C.� Be�completed�in�a�timely�manner;�
� � D.� BUT� IN�NO�CASE�SHALL�SUCH�WORK�TAKE�LONGER�THAN�

THIRTY� (30)�DAYS�FROM�THE�DATE�THE�RESOLUTION�WAS�
SERVED�UNLESS�THE�CARLSBAD�CITY�COUNCIL�CONSENTS�
IN�WRITING�TO�AN�EXTENSION.�

�
� 6.� Any�removal�of�the�ruins,�rubbish,�wreckage,�debris,�or�weeds�shall�leave�
the� property� from�which� the�materials� have�been� removed� in�a� clean,� level,� and� safe�
condition,�suitable�for�further�occupancy�or�construction�and�with�all�excavations�filled.�
�
� 7.� If�the�owner,�occupant,�or�agent�in�charge�does�not�commence�the�removal�
of�the�stated�items,�and�if�no�written�objection�is�filed�as�required,�or�if�the�removal�of�the�
stated�items�is�not�completed�in�a�timely�manner,�the�City�may�remove�the�ruins,�rubbish,�
wreckage,�debris,�and/or�weeds�at�the�cost�and�expense�of�the�owner.�
�
� 8.� The�reasonable�cost�of�such�a�removal�shall�constitute�a�lien�against� the�
ruins,�rubbish,�wreckage,�debris,�and/or�weeds�so�removed�and�against�the�lot�or�parcel�
of�land�from�which�it�was�removed.�
�
� 9.� The�City�Clerk�shall�make�out,�sign,�attest,�file,�and�record�in�the�office�of�
the�Eddy�County�Clerk’s�Office,�a�claim�of�lien�upon�the�described�premises.�



3�
�

�
� 10.� The�lien�shall�bear�interest�at�the�rate�of�twelve�percent�(12%)�per�annum�
from� the� date� of� filing� until� paid,� together� with� reasonable� attorney’s� fees� for� the�
foreclosure� of� the� same.� � The� lien� shall� be� foreclosed� in� any� manner� proved� by� an�
applicable�state�lien�foreclosure�law.�
� �
� INTRODUCED,� PASSED,� ADOPTED,� AND� APPROVED� this� 11th� day� of� July,�
2023.�
�
� � � � � � �
_____________________�
DALE�JANWAY,�MAYOR�
�
�
�
ATTEST:�
�
_____________________���������������������������������������������������
NADINE�MIRELES,�CITY�CLERK�� � � � � � � �



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF CARLSBAD
Planning, Engineering,

and Regulation Department
114 S. Halagueno, PO Box 1569

Carlsbad, New Mexico 88220
Phone (575) 885-1185, Fax (575) 628-8379

CODE ENFORCEMENT REPORT

Case Number:

CE“ 23 -121

Date of Complaint:
4/17/23

Complaint Taken By:
EHarrell

Complainant Name: Phone Number:
Anon

Complaint Location:
2506 Primrose
Details of Complaint:
Junk/trash/debris and burned trailer
Living in shed and van

Primary Structure:
B Residential Commercial

Occupied B Vacant
Secured B Unsecured
No structure on property

Photographs Taken (attach):

B Yes

No

CE District:

North

B South

Narrative:
An old mobile home burned on this property on 11/6/2019 (fire report included). Man on property has moved into a
shed. No water since October 13th, 2020. Fire dept pulled electric meter during house fire. Another call came in for a
fire on 11/17/2019 (fire report included) he was burning rubble in a pile. The property is covered in junk/trash/debris.
As of 6/6/23 a second letter was sent. Property is still out of compliance. Will submit for a condemnation.

Disposition of Case:

No Basis for Complaint:
B Mailed Notice Of Violation/Date: Certified on 5/8/23 to owner on Assessors, Certified on 6/6/23 to physical address

Door Hanger Notice of Violation/Date:
B Verbal Warning/Date: 4/17/23

Referred to Other Agency:
B Other: Will ask fire marshal for an interoffice memo and building department for inspection of the other structures

EHarrell 5/8/23

Code Enforcement Signature Printed Name Date

Report Information:
Entered into Database on: By:

Page of

.cl
Carlsbad
W



Planning, Engineering, and Regulation Department
Code Enforcement Division
101 N. Halagueno St., PO Box 1569 (—
Carlsbad, New Mexico 88220 1 I
Phone (575) 885-1185, Fax (575) 628-8379 '

15 CITY OF CARLSBAD | NOTICE OF CODE VIOLATION
Date: 6/6/2023

Case: CE- 23 - 121

Address: 3333 Primrose

Carlsbad, New Mexico 88220
Name and Address of Property Owner or Occupant*

4-158-129-159-282
NORWEST BANK NM
LOPEZ, ALBERT - K OF S
2306 BONITA ST
CARLSBAD, NM 88220-6165

The following violation(s) of the Carlsbad Code of Ordinances have been identified as existing on your property.lt is
your responsibility, if you have any control over the property, to take immediate action to correct these violation(s), even
if you do not actually occupy the property or if the property is occupied by others.

COMPLETION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION(S) IS REQUIRED NO LATER THAN: 6/16/2023

CORRECTIVE ACTION TO BE TAKEN (WHAT YOU SHOULD DO) BEFORE DEADLINE:
A letter was sent to who is on the Eddy County Assessor's website, (Norwest Bank/K/S Albert Lopez): The letter came back. Per our
conversation: Please clean all junk/trash/debris/building material. No living in the sheds. You have had no water since October 13th 2020.
This property is not habitable to be living on. A condemnation will be submitted for clean up at the deadline above. Thank you for your
compliance. Any questions call 575-885-1185 ext. 2239

CODE VIOLATED:
WASTE STORAGE (CCO 22-03): Any land, within the city, used for open storage of junk, trash or
debris is hereby declared to be a public nuisance, and such use of land is prohibited in the city.

CODE VIOLATED:
No living in sheds

CODE VIOLATED:

Note: Specific details regarding the applicable ordinance may be obtained from the Code Enforcement Division Office listed above. The complete
Code of Ordinances may be found on the City of Carlsbad website: www.cityofcarlsbadnm.com or in the office of the City Clerk.

The required Corrective Active listed above must be initiated immediately and be completed no later than the deadline.
Failure to comply with the Ordinances of the City of Carlsbad is subject to specific actions. If the owner of the property
cannot be located or refuses compliance, the City may initiate condemnation procedures under Chapter 22, Article II, of
the Carlsbad Code of Ordinances to remedy the violation. Under this procedure the City will file a claim of lien against
the premises in the amount of the expenditure by the City to correct each violation. Optionally, the City may seek a
judgment in Municipal Court for the maximum penalty allowed by ordinance for violation of municipal ordinances.
Unless a lesser maximum penalty or a specific penalty is established by ordinance for a particular offense, a fine of not
more than $500 or imprisonment for not more than 90 days, or both, plus court costs, may be imposed by the court.

'Property and owner information is received from the Eddy County Assessor’s Office, Occupant, or City records.

EHarrell 6/6/2023
Code Enforcement Signature Printed Name Date

Page 1 of 2



A. Signature

PftuWo'

Mall Restricted Delivery

Domestic Return Receipt ।

COMPLETE THIS SECTION ON DELIVERYSENDER: COMPLETE THIS SECTION

3. Service Type
Adult Signature
Adult Signature Restricted Delivery

XCertified Mall®
IIIMMIimill

9590 9402 2177 6193 9103 03
Collect on Delivery
Collect on Delivery Restricted Delivery
Insured Mail
Insured Mall Restricted Delivery
(over $500)

Priority Mail Express®
Registered Me3™
Registered Mall Restricted
Delivery
Return Receipt for
Merchandise
Signature Confirmation™
Signature Confirmation
RestrictedDelivery

D. Is delivery address different from item 1? O Yes
If YES, enter delivery address below: Q^No

2. Article Number (Transfer from serving laMt

7D17 1D7D GOOD bHE5 3142. PS Form 3811, July 2015 PSN 7530-02-000-9053

Complete items 1, 2, and 3.
Print your name and address on the reverse
so that we can return the card to you.
Attach this card to the back of the mailpiece,
or on the front if space permits.

1. Article Addressed to:

Agent
Addressee

C. Date of Delivery
X
B. Received by (Printed Name)

U.S. Postal Service ”
CERTIFIED MAIL? RECEIPT
Domestic Mail Only



Name and Address of Property Owner or Occupant*
4-158-129-159-282
NORWEST BANK NM
LOPEZ, ALBERT - K OF S
2306 BONITA ST
CARLSBAD, NM 88220-6165

| NOTICE OF CODE VIOLATION

Carlsbad~yw Carlsbad, New Mexico 88220

Code Enforcement Division
101 N. Halagueno St., PO Box 1569
Carlsbad, New Mexico 88220
Phone (575) 885-1185, Fax (575) 628-8379

15 CITY OF CARLSBAD
Planning, Engineering, and Regulation Department

Date: 5/8/2023

Case: CE- 23 - 121

Address: 2506 Primrose St.

The following violation(s) of the Carlsbad Code of Ordinances have been identified as existing on your property.lt is
your responsibility, if you have any control over the property, to take immediate action to correct these violation(s), even
if you do not actually occupy the property or if the property is occupied by others.

COMPLETION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION(S) IS REQUIRED NO LATER THAN: 5/18/2023

CORRECTIVE ACTION TO BE TAKEN (WHAT YOU SHOULD DO) BEFORE DEADLINE:
Please clean up all the outside storage, junk/trash/debris from this property. No living in sheds and vans
on the property. This will be your only notice before a condemnation is submitted for condemnation.
Thank you for your compliance. Any questions call 575-885-1185 ext. 2239

CODE VIOLATED:
WASTE STORAGE (CCO 22-03): Any land, within the city, used for open storage of junk, trash or debris is hereby declared to be a
public nuisance, and such use of land is prohibited in the city.

CODE VIOLATED:
DILAP DATED 9UU.0IMGS AND STRUCTURES
Sec 22-32. Detenu ratfan; raiaiut-onroguir rg removal
VIMW4at any building or ntiucA.ro Is tu'nod. damaged and dl aplonted, or on-/ promises covetnd with mlns, rubbish. wmckaga. debt* or woods, the city council may by rawlufcn. fmd that tiw rumed. damaged ano dilapidated bukolng cr slrucluro ar weed covered ptomlMi Hi n nienaco to (ha pubEc
ecmlMt honlth. pence or tn'oly and roqu to tho terrnvnf ham Ute city at the bufdirg. Itructuro. run rubbish wreckage, dabrti or waads

CODE VIOLATED:

Note: Specific details regarding the applicable ordinance may be obtained from the Code Enforcement Division Office listed above. The complete
Code of Ordinances may be found on the City of Carlsbad website: www.cityofcarlsbadnm.com or in the office of the City Clerk.

The required Corrective Active listed above must be initiated immediately and be completed no later than the deadline.
Failure to comply with the Ordinances of the City of Carlsbad is subject to specific actions. If the owner of the property
cannot be located or refuses compliance, the City may initiate condemnation procedures under Chapter 22, Article II, of
the Carlsbad Code of Ordinances to remedy the violation. Under this procedure the City will file a claim of lien against
the premises in the amount of the expenditure by the City to correct each violation. Optionally, the City may seek a
judgment in Municipal Court for the maximum penalty allowed by ordinance for violation of municipal ordinances.
Unless a lesser maximum penalty or a specific penalty is established by ordinance for a particular offense, a fine of not
more than $500 or imprisonment for not more than 90 days, or both, plus court costs, may be imposed by the court.

'Property and owner information is received from the Eddy County Assessor's Office, Occupant, or City records.

EHarr^i
Code Enforcement Signature Printed Name

5/8/2023
Date

Page 1 of 2



15 CITY OF CARLSBAD
Planning, Engineering, and Regul
Code Enforcement Division
101 N. Halagueno St., PO Box 1569
Carlsbad, New Mexico 88220
Phone (5751 885-1185 Fax (575) 628-8379

4-158-129-159-282
NORWEST BANK NM
LOPEZ, ALBERT - K OF S
2306 BONITA ST
CARLSBAD, NM 88220-6165

58220~Si

tM25 37757D17 1D70

USPOSTAGE



T
O





;'•?rA.r'W
.'















'IRM
Sis



EXHIBIT B

City Of Carlsbad

Inter-Office Memorandum
Dale Janway Mayor John Lowe, City Manager

Date: 17 April 2023

To: Denise Madrid Boyea, City Attorney

From: Ken Ahrens, Fire Chief

Re: 2S06 Primrose

On April 17, 2023, 1 Inspected a property located at 2506 Primrose. The amount of flammable materials
unsecured and unprotected on this property presents an extreme fire hazard for responding Firefighters
and emergency personnel. I recommend that the property be cleaned up and all trash, debris, and
other loose Items be removed under the following fire codes.

The International Fire Code, 2015 edition states!

Section 110 Unsafe Buildings

110.1 Genera!. If during the Inspection of a building or structure or any building system, In whole or
part, constitutes a clear and Inimical threat to human life, safety or health, the fire code official shall
issue such notice or orders to remove or remedy the conditions as shall be deemed necessary In
accordance with this section and shall refer the building to the building department for any repairs,
alterations, remodeling, removing or demolition required.

110.4 Abatement. The owner, the owner's authorized agent, operator or occupant of a building or
premises deemed unsafe by the fire code official shall abate or cause to be abated or corrected such
unsafe conditions either by repair, rehabilitation, demolition, or other approved corrective action.

Section 304 Combustible Waste Material

304.1 Waste accumulation prohibited. Combustible waste material creating a fire hazard shall not be
allowed to accumulate In buildings or structures or upon premises.

304,1.1 Waste material. Accumulations of wastepaper, wood, hay, straw, weeds, litter, or combustible
or flammable rubbish of any type shall not be permitted to remain on a roof or in any court, yard, vacant
lot, alley, parking lot, open space, or beneath a grandstand, bleacher, pier, wharf, manufactured home,
recreational vehicle, or other similar structure.



304.1.2 Vegetation. Weeds, grass, vines or other growth that Is capable of being Ignited and
endangering property, shall be cut down and removed by the owner or occupant of the premises.

304.2 Storage. Storage of combustible rubbish shall not produce conditions that will create a nuisance
or hazard to the public health, safety, or welfare,

Section 313 Fueled Equipment

313,1.1 Removal. The fire code official Is authorized to require removal of fueled equipment from
locations where the presence of such equipment Is determined by the fire code official to be hazardous.

Section 315 Miscellaneous Combustible Materials Storage

315,3 Outside Storage. Outside storage of combustible materials shall not be located within 10 feet of a
property line.

Ken Ahrens, Fire Chief
Carlsbad Fire Department



Post Office Box 1569
Carlsbad, NM 88221-1569
(575) 887-1191
1-800-658-2713
www.cityofcarlsbadmn.com June 30, 2023

DALE JANWAY
Mayor

JOHN N. LOWE
City Administrator

Norwest Bank NM
c/o Albert Lopez
2306 Bonita St.
Carlsbad, NM 88220

RE: Dangerous Premises at the property known as 2506 Primrose St., Carlsbad, NM

Dear Mr. Lopez:

According to the records of the Eddy County Assessor’s Office, you are the owners or
have an interest in the property commonly known as 2506 Primrose St., Carlsbad,
NM. The property has been inspected by the City Code Enforcement Office and the
Fire Chief. They have found the property to be in violation of a number of health, safety,
and building laws.

Because of the condition of the property, a Resolution has been prepared requiring the
cleaning of the property. The Carlsbad City Council will consider passing that
Resolution at its meeting on Tuesday, July 11, 2023 at 6:00 PM. That meeting will be
held in the Council Chambers in the Janell Whitlock Municipal Complex at 114 S.
Halagueno St., Carlsbad, NM. You are encouraged to come to the meeting and speak
with Council about the property. A draft of the Resolution is included with this letter.

If the Council adopts the Resolution, you must begin removing the ruins, rubbish,
wreckage, debris, and weeds from the property within ten days and complete the work
within thirty days. The property must be left in a clean, level, and safe condition,
suitable for further occupancy or construction and with all excavations filled. If the work
is not done, the City may do the work itself or hire someone to do the work. All
reasonable costs to the City for such work will become a lien against the property. The
City may then foreclose the lien as allowed by law.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact me at (575) 887-1191,
or at the Municipal Building, 101 N. Halagueno, Carlsbad, NM 88220

Sincerely,

Denise Madrid Boyea
Enclosure City Attorney

Ward 1
EDDIE T. RODRIGUEZ

LISA A. ANAYA FLORES

Ward 2
JEFF FORREST

J J CHAVEZ

COUNCILORS
Ward 3

KARLA NIEMEIER
JUDI WATERS

Ward 4
MARK WALTERSCHEID

WESLEY A. CARTER



Committee Reports



Adjourn



 
 

June 30, 2023 
 
Mr. John Lowe 
City Administrator 
City of Carlsbad 
 
Dear Mr. Lowe: 
 
The following report is submitted to the City of Carlsbad to update the progress and status of the 
Carlsbad MainStreet Project for June 2023, per the Downtown Revitalization Services Contract. 
With this report, MainStreet is enclosing an invoice requesting the monthly allocation from the 
City of Carlsbad for $7,500.00 based on the total annual services contract of $90,000. 
 
NEW MEXICO MAIN STREET (NMMS) REQUIRED MEETINGS (MAINSTREET 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR): 

 New Mexico MainStreet Roundtable- 6/21 Topic: Avoiding burnout 
 Meeting with Amy Barnhart, Amy Bell and Julie Blanke for Fall Conference planning  

 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BOARDS AND COMMITTEES: 

 In addition to MainStreet activities, the Carlsbad MainStreet Executive Director serves on 
the following boards and committees related to downtown promotion and economic 
development and attends weekly and monthly meetings to support their priorities and 
activities: 

Carlsbad Area Art Association, Carlsbad Community Concerts Association, Cavern Theater 
Task Force, Carlsbad Downtown Lions Club, Pearl of the Pecos Committee, Chamber of 
Commerce Tourism Council, Chamber of Commerce Non-Profit Council, Chamber of Commerce 
Age Friendly Council, Eddy County DWI Juneors Fine Arts and Acquisition Committee (FAAV), 
Juneors Beautification Committee, Anti-Drug and Gang Coalition, Rotary, Chamber of 
Commerce, City Council, Eddy County Commission, Walter Gerrell’s Civic Center Advisory 
Board, and Carlsbad Department of Development 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT-MAINSTREET STYLE 

 
MainStreet Business/Merchants Economic Vitality  

 Kat & Eyenid, along with board member Mary Garwood visited all businesses downtown 
within the event footprint for CavernFest this year  

 Co-hosted Desert Daze Yoga Studio business grand opening in the MainStreet district 
with the Chamber of Commerce  

 Met with owners of Mimi’s Boutique and Nouveau Esthetics, both new businesses which 
opened in the MainStreet District  

Downtown MainStreet Rejuvenation Project 
 The local Keep Carlsbad Beautiful program submitted their annual Clean and Beautiful 

grant application to the state program and included funding for the remaining benches 
and trash cans for the district  



 
 

 
MainStreet  
Board Meeting – 4th Thursday of each month  

 June – Cancelled board meeting for the month of June, due to CavernFest  
 June 1st& 8th- CavernFest Planning Committee Meetings  
 June 22nd- CavernFest Debrief Meeting  

 
Pearl of the Pecos 

 Steering Committee Meeting- June 26th  
 Sites Southwest Site follow up meeting from Site Visit #2- 6/21  
 Full report of POP work can be found in May report  

 
City of Carlsbad 

 June 1st- Directors CavernFest planning meeting  
 June 5th- Meeting with Mayor and John Lowe  
 June 15th- Directors 4th of July Planning Meeting  

 
Eddy County 

 Submitted Q2 Report   
 
Chamber of Commerce  

 Ribbon Cutting for Desert Daze Yoga Studio Downtown  
 
Department of Development  

 N/A 
 

HAPPENING AT THE MAINSTREET OFFICE 
Staff at the MainStreet office 

 Victoria Martinez, our Farmers Market Manager has started working more hours with the 
market starting this month and holding office hours to meet with vendors and catch up on 
admin work  

 Follow up calls with Amy Barnhart, Amy Bell and Julie Blanke in regard to the state 
conference to be held in Carlsbad this Fall   

 
Reporting 

 All monthly and quarterly reports have been submitted to the City and County  
 
Speaking Opportunity 

 KCC Community Forum- CavernFest & Downtown Farmers & Makers Market  
 Victoria Martinez recorded the Farmers & Makers Market ads for Carlsbad Radio  

 
OTHER MAINSTREET ED MEETINGS AND ACTIVITIES: 



 
 

 This month we held our signature annual event “CavernFest” in partnership with the City 
of Carlsbad. This years CavernFest was the 6th year of the event and probably one of the 
best attended. A lot of planning and preparation from the staff and board of directors 
went into this event. There were over 15,000 people in attendance, 50+ vendors, 25+ 
food trucks and so much more free entertainment and activities for attendees.  

 This month also was the start of our Farmers and Makers Market season. We kicked the 
season off with a “Third Thursday” Summer Celebration event. We had over 50 vendors 
and non-profits booths in attendance, there will be 4 Third Thursdays this market season 
and 16 regular market nights. Our market is held on Thursdays from 5:30-7:30pm  
 

PROMOTION FOR MAINSTREET and CARLSBAD 

New Mexico Magazine 
 Full page CavernFest ad in June issue as well as digital and newsletter ads running  

Focus Magazine 
 Ad & Director’s write up submitted for Focus on Carlsbad Summer edition 

Texas Monthly  
 CavernFest print ad in June edition & newsletter  

Carlsbad Local 
 Market ads running  

Current-Argus 
 N/A 

Artesia Radio 
 Summer events advertising starting June  

Carlsbad Radio 
 Summer events advertising starting  

KCC Radio 
 Community Forum on CavernFest & Market season  

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.   
 
Respectfully, 

Kat Davis 
Kat Davis  
Executive Director 


	1.07-11-2023 CC Agenda
	2.A.Minutes 06-27-2023 Council Draft
	2.B.Personnel Report
	2.C.1.Agt  Eddy Co Opioid Stlmt
	2.C.2.Agt Eddy County CDWI  Funds 23-24
	2.C.3.Agt E-911 Grant 2023-24
	2.C.4.Agt Garden Mart
	2.D.1.Mthly Rpt Human Resources
	3.Submission of Library GrantTraveling Exhibit
	4.Accept T-Mobile Hometown Grant
	5.Accept PD Jr Bill Grant Police Vehicle and Equipment
	6.Temp Business Lic door to door Southwestern Advantage
	7.Appeal  Variance - 1209 W. Thomas St.
	8.RES 2023-32  PERA-CPOA Plan 3
	9.Res 2023-33 PERA-Police Plan 5
	10.Res 2023-34 Weed n Debris 2506 Primrose
	11.Council Committee Reports
	12.Adjourn
	Misc

